Lancashire County Council

Health Scrutiny Committee

Tuesday, 3rd November, 2020 at 10.30 am in Skype Virtual Meeting

Agenda

Part | (Open to Press and Public)

No.

1.

Item

Apologies

Disclosure of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary
Interests

Members are asked to consider any Pecuniary and
Non-Pecuniary Interests they may have to disclose to
the meeting in relation to matters under consideration
on the Agenda.

Minutes of the Meeting Held on 15 September 2020 (Pages 1 - 10)
LCC Adult Social Care Winter Plan (Pages 11 - 36)

Update on suicide prevention in Lancashire and (Pages 37 - 88)
South Cumbria

Report of the Health Scrutiny Committee Steering (Pages 89 - 92)
Group
Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2020/21 (Pages 93 - 98)

Urgent Business

An item of urgent business may only be considered
under this heading where, by reason of special
circumstances to be recorded in the Minutes, the Chair
of the meeting is of the opinion that the item should be
considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency.
Wherever possible, the Chief Executive should be
given advance warning of any Member’s intention to
raise a matter under this heading.

Lancasl;.i‘fe
Sonsy gg;}g



9. Date of Next Meeting

The next meeting of the Health Scrutiny Committee will
be held virtually on Tuesday 15 December 2020 at
10.30am.

L Sales

Director of Corporate Services
County Hall
Preston



Agenda ltem 3

Lancashire County Council

Health Scrutiny Committee

Minutes of the Meeting held on Tuesday, 15th September, 2020 at 10.00 am
- Skype Virtual Meeting

Present:

County Councillor Stuart C Morris (Chair)

County Councillors

L Beavers E Pope

J Berry A Schofield
C Edwards J Shedwick
N Hennessy K Snape

A Hosker D Whipp

Co-opted members

Councillor David Borrow, (Preston City Council)

Councillor Margaret France, (Chorley Council)

Councillor Glen Harrison, (Hyndburn Borough Council)
Councillor Bridget Hilton, (Ribble Valley Borough Council)
Councillor David Howarth, (South Ribble Borough Council)
Councillor Jackie Oakes, (Rossendale Borough Council)
Councillor Julie Robinson, (Wyre Borough Council)
Councillor Tom Whipp, (Pendle Borough Council)

County Councillors Alan Schofield and Julia Berry replaced County Councillors
Peter Britcliffe and Mohammed Igbal respectively, for this meeting only.

1. Apologies

Apologies were received from District Councillors Gail Hodson (West Lancashire)
and Gina Dowding (Lancaster)

2, Constitution: Chair and Deputy Chair; Membership; Terms of
Reference of the Health Scrutiny Committee and its Steering Group

Resolved: That the appointment of Chair and Deputy Chair; the membership of
the committee and the terms of reference, as presented, be noted.

3. Disclosure of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests

None.

Page 1



4. Minutes of the Meeting Held on 30 June 2020

Resolved: That the minutes from the meeting held on 30 June 2020, be
confirmed as an accurate record.

5. NHS 111 First

The Chair welcomed Dr Amanda Doyle, GP and Integrated Care Strategy lead
for Lancashire and South Cumbria and Jackie Bell, Head of Service for 111,
North West Ambulance Service NHS Trust. A report outlining the process and
implementation of the new NHS 111 First initiative was presented

The following points were highlighted:

e The new appointment system for those who would normally self-present at
A&E supported social distancing and aimed to reduce overcrowding, waiting
times and subsequently COVID-19 infection rates. The new system would
support a better flow of work, made best use of available technology and
should improve clinical outcomes, as all attendees will have had a remote
assessment prior to their A&E appointment. The clinician carrying out the
assessment would book the most appropriate appointment depending on the
issue and the service user would not be required to re-dial another service. It
was emphasised that the new way of working was not for urgent 999 calls and
life threatening situations. A&E self-admissions represented approximately
60% of the A&E intake.

e The new system had been launched in Blackpool and Warrington with Royal
Blackburn to follow in October. These initial launches were to assess
effectiveness and outcomes, to make any necessary amendments prior to the
national campaign launch which would communicate the new process of
ringing 111. By the end of November all A&E departments would be live with
the system. Feedback so far from patients and staff had been very positive
and hospitals were keen to launch the programme to prepare for winter.

e The aim was for 20% of self-referrers to access 111 First, however initial
monitoring indicated that the uptake would be higher. Therefore it would be a
significant challenge to ensure the recruitment of health advisers and
assessment clinicians was sufficient to support demand. Recruitment for
health advisers was on schedule.

e The clinical assessments would be at a local level to ensure the most
appropriate services for the area were signposted.

In response to questions from members the following information was clarified:
e There had been a significant and sustained pressure on the 111 service,

related to calls about access to testing rather than in relation 111 First. The
messages on testing websites were being changed to reduce these calls.

Page 2



Blackpool had been identified for an initial launch as an area that made low
numbers of calls to 111 but had high presentations at A&E.

Staff with experience of 111 First and all patients ringing 111 who were
subsequently booked in to a service were being surveyed. Once more sites
were live the feedback results would provide a more robust and effective base
for sound evaluation.

As a national programme, the service would be centrally funded. Additional
capital funding to house additional staff resource would also be required. It
was anticipated that the programme would eventually yield savings once
firmly established.

Staff numbers would be increased for the additional calls and work was
underway with the estates team to undertake rapid expansion of office space
to accommodate them. However due to numbers of staff working from home
some extra office space was immediately available.

The service would cover the whole of the North West Ambulance Service
Trust area, with the initial call being taken at a centralised location. However
clinical assessment would be at a local level. There was a mandatory six
week training course for health advisers (111 call takers), which resulted in
staff following an algorithm designed by clinicians for non-clinical users.
Following that, new staff were individually mentored for two weeks. Rigorous
standards were followed and staff were provided with regular feedback
regarding the quality of their calls. The training was firmly embedded and
outcomes were audited.

If a GP appointment was booked this was done in real time. However some
surgeries were asking for a list to enable them to call back the patient to book
the appointment, dependent on surgery procedures regarding infection
control.

It was not usual for someone with a need that could be met by social
prescribing to present to A&E, however the clinical assessment would
determine if social prescribing was the appropriate pathway for the call.

Resolved: That:

1) The report regarding the implementation of the national NHS 111 First

programme, as presented, be noted.

2) The findings and evaluation of the new NHS 111 First programme be

presented to the Health Scrutiny Committee in six months' time.

Lancashire County Council Adult social care - winter preparations

The Chair welcomed Sue Lott, Head of Service Adult Social Care Health,
Sumaiya Sufi, Quality Improvement and Safety Specialist and Abdul Razaq,

Page 3



Consultant in Public Health to the meeting. The Lancashire County Council staff
were invited to present a report detailing the support that had been provided to
adult social care providers and the Adult Social Care Winter Plan. Lynsey
Davies-Coward from Willowbrook Homecare and Martin Layton from Caritas
Care were also in attendance to provide feedback to the committee on their
experience of county council support during the initial stages of the pandemic.

The following information was highlighted with regard to support provided to adult
social care providers:

e Support had been given to (in the region of) 600 adult social care providers
including care homes, home care agencies and supported living providers.
The support included welfare calls to check they had the information required,
along with sufficient food and medication supplies. Providers were also
offered access to a financial assistance scheme for COVID-19 related costs.
In addition, a not for profit organisation was commissioned to offer a package
of emotional and wellbeing support.

e As the information, advice and guidance from central government was
changing rapidly, it had been necessary to provide regular timely
communication and this was disseminated via a weekly webinar, attended by
the council's infection control team and a newsletter. Bespoke webinars
responding to requests from providers were also arranged. All information and
webinars were uploaded to a custom-made website, along with education
tools to enable providers to train staff. This support continued to help
providers manage new outbreaks.

e Challenges faced included courier collection of tests and delays receiving test
results and this had been escalated to establish a resolution. Repeat testing
was in place — weekly for staff and every 28 days for residents.

e A council managed temporary staffing agency was available for providers
encountering staff shortages due to self-isolating and sickness absence.

e The council also sourced personal protective equipment when needed and
the service had received feedback stating that this support had helped
providers to manage the pandemic and remain confident that provision of
services could continue. The team continued to work with the Lancashire
Resilience Forum to ensure personal protective equipment needs could be
met.

e As lockdown restrictions eased, some care homes had been reluctant to
change the constraints in place regarding visiting. Lancashire County Council
had worked with care homes to provide guidance and resources regarding
how to make visiting safe to support infection control.

Page 4



The private social care providers in attendance made the following comments:

e Lancashire County Council had been instrumental in allowing providers to
sustain vital services during this challenging time. Particularly in the areas of
training, personal protective equipment provision, communication and
financial support.

e Government guidance had centred on care homes, therefore the Lancashire
County Council portal had been an invaluable single point of access for
providers of domiciliary care. It was emphasised that multi-disciplinary teams
were available to support outbreaks in assisted living settings. In addition,
domiciliary care providers didn’t qualify for home testing and the council had
supported providers in accessing tests.

e Personal welfare calls and mental health support had been beneficial as there
had been an increase in the levels of anxiety and depression in the care team.

e Concern was expressed regarding the ongoing staff testing and the lack of
clear guidance and continuity of information as providers were preparing for
the winter period.

In response to questions from members the following information was clarified:

e The council had been reassured by the Department of Health and Social Care
that all care homes, including those for younger people with disabilities, would
be prioritised for testing and receipt of results. The Director of Public Health,
Local Resilience Forum and the North West Association of Directors for Adult
Social Care, promoted local government issues at a national level to improve
the challenges around access to testing.

e The council would continue to support providers throughout winter and was
exploring how the current processes in place could be incorporated in the
longer term. Information gleaned from welfare calls to providers would help
the team to focus support in the most effective way. Care providers at the
meeting, emphasised that business continuity plans had been prepared with
their contract manager at Lancashire County Council to prepare for the impact
of the winter period.

e Healthwatch Lancashire would be publishing a further report regarding the
experiences related to the management of the pandemic, of care home
managers, staff, residents and family members. The survey identified areas
for improvement, particularly for family members of those people in supported
living and extra care facilities. Focus groups would be established to examine
issues raised and how the council can support providers to improve
experiences. Providers had also undertaken surveys with service users and
had received an overall positive response. They were looking at implementing
processes to improve in areas identified, such as managing service user
expectations regarding consistency of carers allocated to service users.

Page 5



A high number of staff and managers had responded to the survey, however
this wasn't the case for residents, as had previously been the case when
feedback was requested. The numbers of responses to the Healthwatch
survey would be shared with members outside of the meeting.

The team was unaware of any plans from the Department of Health and
Social Care to carry out repeat testing for assisted care staff. However if this
became an issue it would be raised with the Lancashire Resilience Forum.

The following information was highlighted with regard to COVID-19 testing in
Lancashire:

Testing was carried out in regional testing units (RTU), mobile testing units
(MTU) and local testing sites (LTS). As an interim measure, five community
testing stations had been set up in the Preston, Hyndburn, Burnley and
Pendle areas, which had carried out approximately 20,000 tests since
inception at the end of July. There had been a recent surge in local demand,
which had resulted in a lack of workforce, long queues and the supply of
testing kits being exhausted. It was intended that these stations would be
phased out and replaced by 14 fixed local testing sites across all 12 districts
in Lancashire (plus one in Blackpool and Blackburn with Darwen) increasing
to two in each by December. This was a national initiative and the request
was awaiting Department of Health and Social Care clearance.

The kits used at the community testing site were intended as a temporary
measure and test results were reliant on local rather national systems.
Results were returned within 2-3, occasionally 4 days. For comparison,
currently 3% of national test results were returned within 24 hours and 24%
within 48 hours. Discussions were underway to prioritise testing for high risk
areas — currently Preston and Pendle. It was anticipated that the community
testing stations would move from a 7 day operation to 5 days, in response to
the limited number of kits available and to aid the resilience of staff who were
working under intense pressure from members of the public. There had been
incidents of inappropriate usage at the community sites, for example, people
requesting tests before going on holiday, for employment checks or before
attending hospital. This was largely due to the national unavailability of tests.
Approximately 5-600 tests were being carried out per week and this had risen
to 1500 across all sites on 15 September 2020. It was emphasised that the
sites were not designed to support the unavailability of national testing
appointments.

The national trace positive contact system involved contacting those who had
tested positive and asking them to provide details of those they had been in
close contact with. Local areas were supporting the national system if they
were unable to contact positive cases within 24 hours. Pendle was the first
district to participate and Hyndburn, Burnley, Blackpool and Preston now also
supported this with trained contact tracers. Currently the national contact
tracers had been unable to contact 23% of positive cases in Lancashire.
Reasons for this included incorrect details being held or a lack of response.

Page 6



Lancaster and West Lancashire districts were in the process of training
contact tracers, which would take two weeks. Once contacted, people who
had tested positive were provided with welfare and self-isolation information
and asked to provide details of their close contacts. This information was then
fed back into the national system. Every positive case required 10 — 12
contacts and there was not enough local resource to accommodate this
considerable task. No assurance had been given from central government
that they would provide dedicated staff for a fully localised test and trace
support system.

Members emphasised that a fully localised test and trace system was crucial
for it to be fully effective, as local tracers would have the benefit of local
knowledge when contacting people.

A key component of winter preparation was the flu immunisation programme
and this year would include additional vulnerable groups, including those
living in long stay facilities, those who were shielding and health and care
staff. Additionally, any surplus vaccine would be offered to people aged 50-64.
Uptake of the vaccine was being widely promoted to ensure the maximum
number of vulnerable people and those that care for them received the
vaccine.

In response to questions from members the following information was clarified:

Each district area had a COVID-19 prevention business continuity plan within
their overall management arrangements.

The walk-in community testing stations were seeing a surge in demand due to
the unavailability of tests at the national testing stations which were by
appointment only. Supply of testing kits for community testing stations were
constrained as this type of testing station was only established as a stop gap
until local community stations had been setup. It was confirmed that the
testing station at Preston had exhausted their supply.

Members commented that long queues, unclear messages about who should
be attending community testing sites, who should self-isolate/be tested if a
pupil within a school bubble tested positive and messages regarding a
shortage of kits were discouraging people to come forward for testing. In
addition, low numbers of the Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic communities
were presenting for tests.

It was clarified that the county council's Head of Service for Communications,
regularly sent out public updates. A new communication was imminent that
addressed many of the points raised regarding the usage and prioritisation of
testing and was awaiting approval from the Director of Public Health.
Additionally significant amounts of work had been undertaken to heighten
awareness across Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic communities and to
encourage vulnerable groups to come forward for testing. Data regarding the
ethnicity of those coming forward was tracked weekly and patterns varied
widely over time and by area. The Lancashire Resilience Forum continued to

Page 7



promote a consistent message that all communities should come forward for
testing. The national message that those who were asymptomatic should not
present for testing did not apply to Lancashire's areas of intervention - Preston
and Pendle. However demand was exceeding supply of kits and staff at
community testing stations could not compensate for the lack of availability at
national testing sites.

e There were no plans to open a community testing centre in Rossendale.

e Clarification was being sought as to whether mobile testing units and local
testing sites would prioritise local people. The Department for Health and
Social Care had assured the Local Resilience Forum that this would be the
case, however this was inconsistent with the public experience.

e A national research programme that was part of a study led by Imperial
College London was sampling communities to check the prevalence of the
virus to understand how and to what level, the virus was circulating around
local communities.

Resolved: That
1) The report as presented, be noted.

2) The committee endorse the work of the Adult Social Care team in supporting
providers during the COVID-19 pandemic and in developing the Winter Plan,
to ensure the authority continues to meet its statutory duties under the Care
Act (2014).

3) The committee support the establishment of devolved local test, trace and
contact system to be included in the Winter Plan.

7. Report of the Health Scrutiny Steering Group

The committee considered a report providing an overview of matters considered
by the Health Scrutiny Steering Group at its meetings on 22 June and 15 July
2020.

Councillor Margaret France expressed that as a member of the Council of
Governors for the Lancashire Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust and a
member of the Our Health Our Care Stakeholder Reference Panel, there may be
a conflict of interest if she were to be confirmed as a member of the proposed
task and finish group to consider forthcoming proposals from the local NHS on
the future of Chorley and South Ribble A&E. It was explained that Chorley
Council's nominated substitute member for Councillor France could take up the
seat instead or alternatively for the county council to write to Chorley Council to
nominate a replacement member.

Page 8



Resolved That:
1) The report of the Steering Group, as presented, be received.

2) The establishment of a task and finish group consisting of seven county
councillors and the two co-opted members from Chorley Council and South
Ribble Council to review the forthcoming proposals from the Our Health Our
Care programme on the future of Chorley and South Ribble A&E, be agreed.

8. Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2020/21

Josh Mynott, Democratic & Member Services Manager, Legal, Governance &
Registrars was welcomed to the meeting. Josh Mynott emphasised the
importance of focussed and targeted work planning to improve outcomes and
robust scrutiny and how this could be achieved by developing specific and
detailed lines of questioning.

Members reviewed the topics listed for consideration by the Health Scrutiny
Committee on the single combined work programme for all Lancashire County
Council scrutiny committees.

Members requested that the following topics be included on the Health Scrutiny
Committee workplan:

e An update on NHS 111 First in March 2021.

e A report from the Our Health Our Care task and finish group prior to May
2021.

e An update on Commissioning Reform in Lancashire and South Cumbiria..

e It was confirmed that an update on suicide prevention in Lancashire would be
brought to the November meeting. It was requested that this include
information on resourcing and the appointment of district mental health and
suicide prevention champions.

Resolved: That the items listed for the Health Scrutiny Committee on the single

combined work programme be agreed subject to the inclusion of the matters

requested and listed in the minutes above.

9. Urgent Business

There were no items of urgent business.

10. Date of Next Meeting

The next meeting of the Health Scrutiny Committee will be held on Tuesday 3
November 2020 at 10.30am by means of a virtual meeting.

Page 9



L Sales
Director of Corporate Services

County Hall
Preston

Page 10



Agenda ltem 4

Health Scrutiny Committee
Meeting to be held on Tuesday, 3" November 2020

Electoral Division affected:
All Divisions

Lancashire County Council Adult Social Care Winter Plan
(Appendix 'A' refers)

Contact for further information:

Sue Lott, Head of Service, Community North and County Acute & Prisons (Adult
Social Care)

Sue.lott@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary
The report provides details of the Lancashire County Council Adult Social Care
Winter Plan for 2020-21, and the additional capacity that will be mobilised to meet
the anticipated demand.
Recommendation
The Health Scrutiny Committee is asked to:

1. Note the report.

2. Support the ongoing work of Adult Social Care to ensure vulnerable people

who need social care support across the winter period and continuing

pandemic, receive the right support the right time.

3. Formulate any recommendations for improvements to the Winter Plan for
consideration by Cabinet for its scheduled meeting on 5 November 2020.

Background and Advice

Adult Social Care has published an annual winter plan for the last 5 years. The
Winter Plan for 2010/21 will be considered by Cabinet when it meets on 5 November
2020 and copy of the plan is set out at appendix A.

This year, the Adult Social Care plan has required the Council to take account not
just of typical winter pressures, but also the added challenges that are still evident
across the social care sector from the first wave of the COVID-19 pandemic, dealing
with the 'second wave' and preparing for any further spikes which may occur in the
months ahead.

Lancasg.i‘[e
Soundy g@g

Page 11



In addition, local NHS organisations are working hard to restore services that were
paused during the earlier phases of pandemic, such as orthopaedic operations,
which will bring greater demand to social care.

Ensuring the stability of the care market and the sufficiency of care and support
services remains of paramount importance and is a critical part of this winter plan.

The Plan sets out the actions adult social care will take across winter. It also sets
out the additional services that are being established to support more people to
return directly home from hospital when they no longer need to be there, or for
people to remain in their own home and avoid an unnecessary hospital admission.

The Winter Plan also sets out how risks will be managed and the contingencies that
will be in place during times of enhanced pressure.

The plan also notes the recent requirement for Local Authorities to identify
designated care settings for people discharged from hospital who have a COVID-19
positive status, and the significant challenges this brings for all areas including
Lancashire.

The Adult Social Care Winter Plan sits alongside and is interdependent with local
NHS winter plans of each of the Integrated Care Partnerships (West Lancashire,
Pennine, Fylde Coast, Morecambe Bay, Central Lancashire) and with the Lancashire
and South Cumbria Integrated Care System level. It also aligns with the national
Adult Social Care Plan and the requirements set out within it.

Consultations

N/A

Implications:

This item has the following implications, as indicated:

Risk management

The Winter Plan will be subject to monitoring through the Lancashire County Council
Winter Board to ensure its full delivery and the achievement of key outcomes.

Financial

The need to respond to the Covid-19 pandemic has seen the suspension of the
Advancing Integration governance arrangements in Lancashire, where relevant
financial discussions would have previously taken place.

To enable decisions to be made on the allocation of the Winter Pressures grant and
the additional Covid Grant monies, the Out of Hospital cell of the Lancashire & South
Cumbria NHS Command & Control Structure has been used as it contains the
required level and breadth of NHS and social care representation.

Page 12



That body has agreed the plan for the use of the Winter Pressures grant and the
Covid grant monies, with a continued emphasis on increasing capacity in core
community/intermediate care services and doing all we can to support people to stay
or return to their own home.

The planned spend on additional staffing and externally commissioned services is:

e Covid Grant £4.772m until 31st March 2021
e Winter pressures grant £3.0m from 1st April 2021

There is a potential need for a further £4.3m for the continuation of these services
until September 2021. This is to be considered further.

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
List of Background Papers

Paper Date Contact/Tel
None
Reason for inclusion in Part Il, if appropriate

N/A

Page 13



Page 14



Appendix 'A’

Lancashire County Councill
Adult Social Care
Winter Plan 2020/21

Author: Sue Lott, Head of Service

Date
Version: 1

Lancashire

County G
Council @g{)

www.lancashire.gov.uk



Adult Social Care Winter Plan: 2020/2021

Document Version Control

Changes
Version | Issue Date from Approver's | Approver's | Sent To Date
Previous Name Title Sent
Version
V1 29.9.2020 Louise | 29.9.2020
Taylor,
lan
Crabtree,
key
subject
experts
V2 5.10.2020 | Updated with Directors, | 5.10.2020
comments Finance,
/amendments key
subject
experts
Final 14.10.2020
(V2a)

Page 16



Adult Social Care Winter Plan: 2020/2021

Contents
Section Title Page No
1.0 Introduction 4
2.0 National and Local Planning Context (Our 5
Plan)
3.0 Aims and Objectives 8
4.0 Preventing and Controlling the Spread of 8
Infection in Care Settings
5.0 Flu 10
6.0 Service Capacity and Expansion 11
7.0 Collaboration Across Health and Care 14
Services
8.0 Supporting People Who Receive Social Care, 1g
The Workforce, and Carers
9.0 Prisons 18
10.0 Public Health 19
11.0 Communications 20
13.0 Appendix 1 — Additional Service Capacity and 21

Costs

Page 17



Adult Social Care Winter Plan: 2020/2021

1. Introduction

Winter planning is a necessary and critical part of business planning in order to set out
business continuity and managing major areas of risk during what is typically a more
pressured part of the year.

This year, planning has required the Authority to take account not just of typical winter
pressures, but also the added challenges that are still evident across the social care
sector from the first wave of the COVID-19 pandemic, alongside ensuring readiness
for a second wave or further spikes. Combined with this the NHS have targets to meet
as part of its post COVID restoration work (commonly known as 'phase 3 planning')
which will also bring greater demand to social care. Ensuring the stability of the social
care market and sufficiency of care remains of paramount importance and is a critical
part of this winter plan.

The Lancashire County Council Winter Plan for Adult Social Care formally comes into
effect from 15 October 2020 and will run until the 31 March 2021. To shore up the
ability of Adult Social Care to respond to the ongoing pandemic, several elements of
this winter plan are in place prior to the official commencement date and will also need
to continue beyond the end of the winter period. The plan aligns to both local Integrated
Care Partnership (ICP) and Integrated Care System (ICS) plans, as well as the national
Adult Social Care: Our COVID-19 Winter Plan for 2020-21. The National Social Care
Task Force published its report on the 18" September 2020, and where relevant, this
winter plan incorporates recommendations from it.

This winter plan sets out the measures that Lancashire County Council are taking as
part of collective planning across the ICS to ensure high quality and responsive
services that enable people to maximise their independence, leave hospital as soon
as they no longer need a hospital bed or avoid an unnecessary admission, and remain
living in their own home for as long as possible. It also sets out the measures being
taken to support the care market to be as resilient as possible across the winter months
and during the pandemic, and the work underway to restore social care services in a
safe and COVID secure way, which had been paused during the first wave of COVID-
19.

When systems are under pressure it remains important to collaborate to make best
use of public funding and to reduce duplication, and Lancashire County Council will
continue to plan with partners to ensure that these principles underpin our collective
response to winter resilience.

The LCC Adult Social Care Winter Plan version 2, dated 1% October 2020 has been
signed off by the Adult Services Senior Leadership Team and shared with relevant
managers and staff within the Council. In accordance with the national Adult Social
Care: Our COVID-19 Winter Plan 2020/21, Lancashire County Council have written to
the Department of Health and Social Care confirming we have put in place a winter
plan and have either undertaken actions or are continuing to work with care providers
across Lancashire in order to receive the second instalment of the Infection Control
Fund.

The range of measures and actions set out in the plan and delivery against it will be
monitored on a regular basis by the LCC Adult Social Care Winter Board, which will
also agree mitigating actions where required.

A copy of the Lancashire County Council Adult Social Care winter plan will be
forwarded to each of the 5 A&E Delivery Boards for inclusion in the system wide winter
planning and delivery reporting.

Any significant amendments will be communicated via the issue of a new version

Page 18



Adult Social Care Winter Plan: 2020/2021

2. National and Local Planning Context

In addition to the usual considerations of winter and the extra demand that the time of
year places on social care, there are a number of additional factors, risks and reports
that have been taken into consideration and influenced the planning for this year.

These include:
COVID-19 — all the additional pressures that delivering services in the context of
COVID-19's continued presence creates for LCC, the NHS and social care providers;

National Social Care Action Plan (15.4.2020) - This plan set out a range of measures
for Local Authorities to ensure a response to, and which were aimed at

1. controlling the spread of infection
2. supporting the workforce

3. supporting independence, supporting people at the end of their lives, and
responding to individual needs

4. supporting local authorities and the providers of care

National Adult Social Care Winter Plan (DHSC 18.9.2020) — this plan sets out the
key elements of national support available for the social care sector for winter 2020 to
2021, as well as the main actions to take for local authorities, NHS organisations, and
social care providers, including in the voluntary and community sector. It incorporates
many of the recommendations set out in the national Social Care Task Force report as
well as building on the learning and the work undertaken by Adult Social Care across
the pandemic so far.

The key elements of the plan include:

1. Confirmation of the continuation of the Infection Control Fund, with an
additional £546 million being allocated ‘to support providers to stop all but
essential movement of staff between care homes to prevent the spread of
infection’ — including payment of staff who need to self-isolate.

2. The provision of free Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) for 'care workers
and people receiving social care’ until 31st March 2021 for all Care Quality
Commission (CQC) registered adult social care providers (via PPE portal and
Local Resilience Forums (LRF)) and a commitment to also support the wider
PPE needs of the sector (via Local Authorities).

3. The appointment of a new national Chief Nurse for Adult Social Care to provide
clinical leadership to the social care nursing workforce, and who will work
alongside the national Chief Social Worker.

4. Proposals for a strengthened monitoring by CQC jointly with Local Authorities
where there are concerns for safety or quality.

5. Development of a designation scheme with CQC to designate premises that
are safe for people leaving hospital who have tested positive for COVID-19 or
are awaiting a test result

6. Make available for free and promote the flu vaccine to all health and care staff,
personal assistants and unpaid carers

7. Publish the new online Adult Social Care Dashboard which brings together
information from a range of existing sources to give visibility of real time data
at a national, regional and local level

National Social Care Task Force Report (18.9.2020) — this report summarises the
work and recommendations of the Social Care Task Force which was set up to

Page 19



Adult Social Care Winter Plan: 2020/2021

consider the needs of the social care sector across winter and beyond in the response
to COVID-19. It was supported in its work by 8 advisory groups looking into specific
areas of care. The final report sets out the critical requirements in increasing resilience
in the social care sector at a national, regional and local level and actions that are
required to enable people who need social care support to live as safely as possible,
whilst maintaining critical contacts and activities that support their health and wellbeing.

NHS Winter Planning — the NHS have this year been required to submit, in
collaboration with key partners at ICP/MCP and ICS levels, winter planning templates
that set out key risks and actions to be taken in respect of Demand, Capacity,
Workforce, Exit Flow and External Events.

NHS Phase 3 Planning & Restoration of Services - the additional mandate that
came to the NHS in July 2020 on how to prepare for the rest of the year, including a
return to normal in community health services and a catch up on treatments and
operations delayed from earlier this year

Hospital Discharge Service: Policy and Operating Model (21.8.2020) — sets out a
nationally mandated discharge process and set of discharge pathways that require
people to leave hospital within the same day that they no longer have a 'reason to
reside' in a hospital bed. This will improve the safety of individuals and the resilience
of community services if people spend as little time as possible in hospital, but presents
challenges in ensuring people are discharged to the right service for them, at the right
time.

Local NHS Hospital Bed Deficits — local bed modelling shows an anticipated
significant bed deficit to meet the demands of winter and COVID-19, and winter
planning needs to provide mitigation for this.

Workforce — requirement to consider recruitment and retention both for new or
expanded services, along with the resilience and wellbeing of staff which could further
impact on already fragile services. Issues such as vacancies, absences and high
turnover not only lead to a higher risk of infection transmission, but also mean that
capacity is at greater risk of being insufficient to respond to need during the height of
the winter.

Funding - there is a funding shortfall in what's required to deliver the additional
capacity. Proposals have been shared with the ICS regarding system support to this,
plus the continuation of essential Improved Better Care Fund (iBCF) funded teams for
a further year

Market Stability / Sufficiency / Suitability - responding to uncertainties in how the
care market may operate in the months ahead, and the difficulties in reliably estimating
demand and capacity in the context of so many other variables

Mental Health — demand for mental health services is already growing in the aftermath
of the COVID-19 peak. Winter and the other pressures listed here are likely to add to
that demand both for in-patient services, for safe and speedy discharges and for
community services.

Page 20



Adult Social Care Winter Plan: 2020/2021

Working to Reduce Inegualities — we know that the virus has had a disproportionate
effect on people from some minority ethnic backgrounds and with certain health
conditions and disabilities. People in some care settings have been disproportionately
affected in terms of face to face contact with their loved ones and many people have
not been able to access their usual support settings and networks. Our aim is to
support communities to minimise the risks of transmission of the virus, whilst reducing
inequalities in the impact the COVID-19 restrictions has on people who need health
and social care support.

Lancashire County Council Social Care priorities — areas where improvements or
opportunities have been identified that will make a difference to performance or
financial controls. Restoration of paused services such as Day Services, and work to
ensure the resilience of social care delivery.

Restoration of Continuing Health Care (CHC) processes — these were suspended
from the 19" March 2020 as part of the national response to the pandemic, but they
are now being restarted which will have implications for the social work workforce too,
as the backlog is tackled and the speed of decision making is expected to quicken.
Getting this right has benefits both to individuals, the care market and also to LCC
budgets. Getting it wrong could lead to poorer outcomes for people, additional
pressures on the market and a potential pressure on the Adult Social Care budget.

Brexit - it is unclear at this stage just how severely the health and social care system
may be affected by Brexit. It's most likely direct impact on social care is a loss of some
workforce capacity, however we know that Lancashire is likely to be at lower risk than
some other parts of the UK. Its impact on the NHS workforce and on essential supplies
is potentially greater if contingency and resilience plans are not successful, and this
could have a knock on impact onto social care in terms of additional demand.

We have worked in collaboration with key partners to develop our winter plan, including
the NHS, the 3" Sector and providers across the care market. In turn, we have
collaborated with the NHS and key partners in the development of the ICP and ICS
system plans. Our adult social care plan is not limited to only those people who receive
Local Authority funded care, but also ensures that key actions apply to those who fund
their own care. We have also detailed the support offered to informal carers.

Across the winter period and beyond we will continue to work closely with partners, in
particular the care market to ensure that relevant advice and guidance is promoted
through the fortnightly provider webinar and implemented, and where appropriate
localised flexibility is applied.

Responding to and managing the impact of COVID-19 remains of critical importance
across the winter period and into 2021. The Lancashire Local Outbreak Management
Plan is in place to take actions and support the containment of COVID-19. To minimise
the risks of transmission of the virus when moving from healthcare to and between
social care settings, an Admissions Policy is in place, endorsed by the Lancashire
Local Resilience Forum (LRF). The Policy sets out that individuals must be tested prior
to hospital discharge and only where a provider indicates they can safely isolate the
person should they be discharged into the preferred social care setting. The
Admissions Policy is regularly reviewed and updated in response to new guidance and
Infection Prevention considerations.

Page 21



Adult Social Care Winter Plan: 2020/2021

3. Aims and Objectives

The aims and objectives of the Lancashire County Council Adult Social Care Winter
Plan are:

e To ensure that the Lancashire Adult Social Care Winter Plan meets the
requirements of the national Adult Social Care COVID-19 Winter Plan

e Ensure the provision of social care services, of a sufficient volume and quality, and
that have a focus on maximising independence are in place across the winter
period

¢ To maximise adult social care resilience and support wellbeing, both across the
care market and in the Lancashire County Council adult social care assessment
and support teams

o Identify, mitigate and minimise risks across the social care system, and work
collaboratively with partners to reduce risks across the ICS

e Ensure that people are supported in a safe and COVID secure way, with the right
services available in a timely way

e Ensure that a 'home first' focus is maintained throughout all decision making at
individual and wider commissioning levels

¢ Maintain a balance between reducing the risks of the virus and responding to the
need for people to receive care and support

e Ensure high quality care and support is designed, commissioned and delivered in
a way that upholds peoples' dignity and affords choice and control

o Wherever possible, to ensure care will be provided in a way that supports people
to remain connected with families and loved ones, supports emotional wellbeing
and reduces loneliness

e To put into practice locally, the recommendations of the Social Care Taskforce

e Have due regard and take relevant actions in relation to individuals and
communities who may be more susceptible to the transmission of COVID-19

¢ To continue work to identify and minimise inequalities across the health and care
system

The following sections highlight the activity/work taking place across a number of key
areas to meet the aims and objectives stated above.

4. Preventing and Controlling the Spread of Infection in Care
Settings

Significant work has been undertaken locally and continues to be in place to prevent
and underpin the control of the virus across care settings.

Provider Engagement & Guidance

Fortnightly webinars are held with all care providers across Lancashire where amongst
other key messages, relevant information is shared in relation to Infection Control and
COVID-19 Testing guidance and procedures. This information is delivered by subject
matter experts from Public Health, and questions raised by providers are responded
to and placed on the provider portal for reference purposes.

Guidance has been issued to Care Homes based on national data and information in

relation to enabling COVID safe visiting for residents. A localised visiting policy for
professionals has also been developed, and is used to minimise footfall into care

Page 22



Adult Social Care Winter Plan: 2020/2021

settings and ensure all protection measures including risk assessments and use of
PPE are in place.

Our Lancashire Local COVID19 Outbreak Management Plan sets out how we will
prevent and manage coronavirus cases and outbreaks in the county, including in high-
risk settings such as care homes, as well as workplaces and schools. The plan sets
out the definitions of outbreaks, actions that will be taken, and support that will be
offered to vulnerable people as part of the outbreak management. The plan has been
shared widely, and is publically accessible via the LCC Coronavirus webpage.

Information is shared regularly from the Lancashire Health Protection Board with
relevant teams in adult social care who are managing the response to provider
resilience, COVID incidents and outbreaks.

Outbreak Support Team

Recognising that the challenges of the pandemic are likely to continue through winter
and beyond, the Quality, Contracts and Safeguarding Adults Service has recently
organised the Covid Outbreak Support Team to assist providers to manage their
COVID-19 incidents/outbreaks as effectively as possible, and provide support
throughout their recovery. The team work closely with the county council's Infection,
Prevention and Control team and NHS partners.

Aligned to this, the county council commissioned My Home Life to deliver wellbeing
support to care homes, many of whom suffered excess loss of life during the early
stages of the pandemic; we are continuing to explore how we can progress to offering
this support more widely.

In each ICP, Outbreak Control Groups are in operation across health and social care,
ensuring a coordinated response to prevention and outbreak control that is bespoke to
the needs of each care setting.

Testing

Locally, NHS partners have delivered training to all Care Homes in relation to swabbing
staff and residents. Care Homes are able to request additional support or refresher
training where required.

Testing is a vital part of ensuring the prevention of transmission of the virus and in
managing outbreaks, and all eligible care settings are encouraged to register with the
national portal to receive the testing kits and ensure that they follow the testing
strategy.

Workforce

The importance of restricting the movement of staff between Care Homes, along with
a range of workforce measures to limit the transmission of COVID-19 has been shared
with providers. The 1% tranche of the national Infection Control Fund (c £16m)which
was passported directly to providers by the Council, set out further requirements to be
met in order to receive and use the monies to support the prevention and management
of COVID related challenges. The extension of this fund with a second tranche (c£14M)
under the national Adult Social Care Winter Plan is welcomed, and will be similarly
distributed to care providers in line with the regulations.

Page 23



Adult Social Care Winter Plan: 2020/2021

All providers have in place business continuity plans that many have enacted at times
during the first wave of the pandemic, and will continue to do so during the winter
period if needed.

As part of the initial COVID-19 response to the needs of Care Homes, the Lancashire
Temporary Staffing Agency (LTSA) was formed in April 2020 by the Council, to support
the resilience of the Care Homes where they had sudden staffing gaps due to COVID
related absence. In recognition of the continuing fragility of the care sector, Lancashire
County Council has taken the decision to continue this additional capacity until at least
31 March 2021 at a current cost of around £50,000 per month. The LTSA at one stage
had approximately 140 staff, however as people have started to return to their usual
jobs or back to University etc, we are now about to commence a further round of
recruitment to shore up capacity for the winter period. So far, we have supported more
than 30 Care Homes across Lancashire through the LTSA, and ensured safe services
could continue. In compliance with effective infection control, staff require a negative
test result before being deployed into any Care Home requiring additional support.

Personal Protective Equipment

The provision of PPE remains of critical importance and Care Home and Homecare
providers have been encouraged to register with the national portal to obtain free
supplementary supplies. The extension of this scheme until the end of March 2021 is
set out in the national Adult Social Care Winter Plan, along with the plans for PPE to
be provided via the LRF or Local Authorities to other care providers not eligible for
registration on the national portal. Lancashire already has arrangements in place to
monitor and distribute PPE to personal assistants operating under Direct Payments.

Designated Settings — Winter Discharges

On the 12" October 2020 the Department of Health & Social Care notified Local
Authorities of the requirement for designated care settings for people discharged from
hospital who have a COVID positive status. The requirement applies to people being
discharged into or back into a registered care home setting across the winter period.

The requirement applies to residential and nursing homes for older people, people with
dementia and people with a learning disability, mental health and/or other disabilities.
Local Authorities are directed to work with the Care Quality Commission to identify
local designated accommodation and work to assure their compliance with the
Infection Prevention Control protocols.

The requirement for designated settings for people who have a positive COVID-19 test
presents significant challenges for health and care organisations, not just in Lancashire
but across all areas. The Local Authority has commenced this work with the Care
Home providers, the Care Quality Commission and the NHS locally.

5. H

As we move into the winter period, the prevalence of flu increases. The ability to
implement a successful national vaccination programme will be more important than
ever.

In addition to the national programme, LCC will be undertaking an annual workforce
programme to increase staff protection via the offer of a free flu vaccination; the
programme will be extended out to all staff(except mainstream schools teaching staff

Page 24



Adult Social Care Winter Plan: 2020/2021

where different arrangements apply) to ensure essential services are unaffected over
the winter period

All staff across Adult Social Care have been encouraged to take up the seasonal flu
vaccine to support keeping our teams well over winter.

Local authorities have a responsibility to provide information and advice to relevant
bodies within their areas, to protect the health of the population and the Lancashire
County Council Flu Team provide this advice and support along with other actions to
increase uptake of the vaccine.

This year, the community pharmacy seasonal influenza advanced service framework
will be amended to enable community pharmacies to vaccinate both residential
care/nursing home residents and staff in the home setting in a single visit to increase
uptake rates and reduce footfall. The Council are working closely with the NHS locally
to ensure that flu vaccinations reach the widest audience including more difficult to
reach communities. A joint communications campaign has been developed and will be
shared widely across a range of platforms.

6. Service Capacity and Expansion

Work has been undertaken to identify the range of COVID-19 response actions that
need to continue and extend across the winter period and beyond, plus new or
expanded service capacity to meet the social care demands of the continuing
pandemic and the winter period. (See Appendix A for consolidated table and
breakdown of costs of additional winter capacity)

These include:

Consolidation / continuation of existing iBCF funded teams

We continue to use the iBCF to fund staffing and services that ensure we can provide
essential functions including Mental Health Act assessments on a 24/7 basis, effective
hospital discharge and admission avoidance, and intermediate care triage, allocation
and case management. Funding arrangements are in place to continue these essential
teams and services through to March 2022.

The iBCF funded teams/services agreed for continuation are:

Mental Health — continuation of 24 hour AMHP service and Integrated Discharge
Service

Intermediate Care (ICAT and CATCH) and D2A assessment services — continued
funding of social work, occupational therapy and care navigation posts

Promoting Independence Team — continuation of this team which undertakes a
range of cross cutting work to address pressures and deliver budget savings

Crisis & Reablement Hours

An additional 1,600 crisis hours per week for winter and beyond if required, have been
identified that support people to remain in their own home who are at risk of hospital
or residential care admission without urgent support. The support is provided for up to
72 hours and can be anything from a one-off hour to continuous support.

Page 25



Adult Social Care Winter Plan: 2020/2021

An additional 2,700 'Home First' crisis hours per week for winter and beyond if required,
have been identified that will support more people to leave hospital and return directly
home as soon as they no longer need to be there. The home first hours are used to
support discharges with and without therapy input, and support people for up to 5 days
where formal support is required to recover, with the assessment for onward support
taking place at day 3.

An additional 3,000 crisis hours per week and beyond if required, have been identified
to enable Adult Social Care to offer enhanced support to those people who have more
complicated urgent social care needs and would otherwise be facing an unnecessary
admission to a Care Home. The additional hours will enable people to remain in their
own home for longer, plus where appropriate they will also enable more rapid hospital
discharge and reduced length of stay.

An additional 57 Reablement places per week for winter and beyond if required have
been identified in anticipation of more people being discharged from hospital more
quickly as part of NHS phase 3 restoration, plus the continuing effects of COVID-19.
As the demand on community services grows, the need to maximise peoples'
independence becomes ever more critical, and the enhanced service provision may
well be required on a long term basis as per the ICS Intermediate Care Review.

Roving Nights Service

An additional 3 'shift runs' per night for winter and beyond if required, have been
identified to provide care visits throughout the night for people who have needs but no
need of continuous contact throughout the night time period. The service supports
people who have more complicated care needs to return to, or remain in, their own
home for longer.

This additional capacity could support between an additional 60 - 126 people per week
dependent upon care needs.

Residential Rehab/Community Beds

Across the county there are 115 residential rehab/community beds, providing 24hr
bed based rehabilitation for people who need a higher level of care and support to
achieve their optimum independence. These beds are sited within existing Care
Homes, and are provided via the Lancashire County Council Older Peoples' Service
working in partnership with NHS community services who provide the therapy
services to facilitate rehabilitation.

Additional care staff capacity has been identified for winter and beyond if required, to
enable the service to maximise the use of the beds and safely meet the needs of
increased volumes of people with more complicated needs and who require support
overnight.

A trial referral management service is also proposed across the next 12 months, which
sees a dedicated centralised triage function for the countywide residential rehab
services. This will enable faster responses to referrers, focussed accuracy checking of
information in relation to needs, and free up the Registered Care Home Managers to
focus on other critical tasks.

Care Provider Resilience

Within the plans for winter, additional management capacity is costed to support the
Crisis and Reablement providers. This is in relation to the increased volume of hours

Page 26



Adult Social Care Winter Plan: 2020/2021

to be coordinated and rostered, plus link in with and provide feedback to social care
assessment teams on increased volumes of service users.

The proposal will also support the crisis and Reablement providers to be able to shore
up their management capacity to operate more robustly across 7 day working. This will
support both the requirement to deliver a more rapid discharge process and enable
people with urgent social care needs to be supported in their own home rather than an
unnecessary admission to hospital or a care home, thus freeing up services for people
who need that level of support.

The continuation of the Lancashire Temporary Staffing Agency will continue to support
the resilience of care homes, in particular where there are staffing gaps due to staff
sickness, or in the management of COVID-19 outbreaks.

The Quiality, Contracts and Safeguarding Adults Service continues to support providers
across a wide range of pandemic related areas, and additional staff are detailed in the
winter plan to bolster this service. The service has also developed a specific covid-19
provider failure plan which can be initiated should services be at risk of not being able
to meets people's care and support needs as a result of the pandemic. This bespoke
provider failure plan is supplementary to the existing plans in place which supports the
county council's responsibilities under the Care Act and has been stress tested by the
Military.

Providers also receive a daily call from the council where they are asked a range of
questions including their PPE status, the staffing capacity and any new or suspected
cases of COVID-19. They are also asked how they are managing and whether any
additional support is required. This information is shared with contract management
teams within the service to follow up and ensure that providers receive the information,
advice and guidance they need, linking in to relevant support pathways where
necessary.

The government has made available to care providers a grant (with conditions) to
support infection control. The funds will be administered by the council, with the period
covered by the grant ending March 2021.

Hospital Aftercare Service (Age UK)

The Hospital Aftercare service is present in each Acute Trust across Lancashire, and
works alongside discharge teams and NHS colleagues in the Emergency Department
to support timely discharge for those people not requiring specialist transport or
social care.

The service which is delivered by Age UK on behalf of Lancashire County Council
includes "Take Home & Settle" (Tier 1) which provides support for up to 3 hours, and
"Follow-up and Support" (Tier 2) which provides low level support for up to six weeks
of up to 15 hours over the period.

The planned expansion for this winter and beyond if required, will support up to an
additional 800 people per year.

Integrated Home Response and Falls Lifting Service

These services went live in October 2019 across Lancashire, and offer an alternative
response to an Ambulance for people who have fallen within their own home and
have no injury but need help in getting back on their feet or for those who receive
LCC's or Blackpool Council's telecare service and require a wellbeing check. The

Page 27



Adult Social Care Winter Plan: 2020/2021

service aims to avoid unnecessary call outs of emergency ambulances to older and
vulnerable people. Instead of being attended to by North West Ambulance Service
(NWAS) the individual is visited by a response and lifting service, building on existing
local authority telecare provision.

Up to the end of June 2020, the service responded to over 11,500 calls. Those are
potentially visits which an emergency ambulance would need to respond to, if this
service wasn’t in place. Average response times for the service are just over 27
minutes, which is much better for the individual as they will wait for less time on the
floor.

Workforce

Additional Social Work, Occupational Therapy and related social care assessment
workforce have been proposed which will expand the capacity of a range of teams to
support amongst other things:

the rapid discharge of people ready to leave hospital

assessments and reviews

triage and facilitate admissions into intermediate care services

support people to move through intermediate care services

support providers with outbreak management and recovery, and respond to
provider failure

minimise delays in adult safeguarding work

sourcing appropriate care in a timely way

support to people who are homeless and at risk of COVID transmission
meet the increased demand for 'single handed care' assessments

Mental Health

It is recognised, that as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic, the demand for mental
health services is likely to increase further, due to both increased mental health
prevalence within the population, as well as from suppressed access to mental health
support during the lockdown period and continuing social restrictions. Additionally
services both nationally and locally are beginning to see an increased acuity in first
time presentations to our services. Adult Social Care teams and the 24/7 AMHP service
work together with NHS partners to support to access the right treatment and support
for their needs, in a timely way.

7. Collaboration across Health and Care Services

LCC Adult Social Care have worked together with the NHS and other partners on
winter planning, risk mitigation and opportunities for mutual aid.

Hospital Discharge

The updated national Hospital Discharge Service Policy and Operating Model was
published 21 August 2020. Work is underway to agree a standardised set of
principles, pathways and an operating model for Lancashire and South Cumbria
aligned to the national guidance that will enable people leaving hospital to experience
the same process, receive the same information and have access to the same service
opportunities on discharge. This work also includes developing and agreeing locally
the financial arrangements that underpin the operating model.

Page 28



Adult Social Care Winter Plan: 2020/2021

The updated national model aims to keep people as safe as possible by putting in
place pathways that enable people to leave hospital as soon as they no longer need
an Acute bed. The expansion of the service capacity set out in the LCC Adult Social
Care Winter Plan supports this aim by ensuring there is sufficient service capacity to
enable this to happen in a timely way, in the majority of cases on the same day. The
expanded services focus on enabling people to have period of recovery and maximise
their independence. Planning and decision making at both an individual and
commissioning level has a clear 'home first' focus.

In line with the updated guidance, people who are discharged with new or extended
care are fully funded for up to 6 weeks. LCC and NHS staff work closely together to
ensure that peoples' needs are assessed within that time, and longer term care needs
are identified and appropriate support put in place

Care Settings

The Lancashire Admissions Policy is in use and followed by the Hospitals which ensure
that people must be tested prior to discharge into a care setting. The Policy further sets
out the requirement to communicate the results to the providers and confirm that they
can receive the person and provide the appropriate isolation measures. As a health
and care system we will be working together to support people to return to the home
they were in prior to a hospital admission wherever possible, and avoid unnecessary
disruption to their lives.

Adult Social Care are working locally with NHS partners and Care Providers to look at
alternative safe options for people who need to leave hospital, cannot return home
even with a high level of support and cannot be discharged to their chosen Care Home
as the provision of appropriate isolation is not possible. We will also be working closely
with the CQC in their role under the national Adult Social Care Winter Plan to designate
premises that are safe for people leaving hospital who have tested positive for COVID-
19 or are awaiting a test result

Provision under the Enhanced Health in Care Homes framework is in place across
Lancashire, with all Care Homes having been designated a clinical lead. Various
arrangements are in place across the County under the framework including the
sharing of heath advice and information with Care Homes through local digital
platforms, the provision of enhanced support through health Care Home support
teams, the ability to provide GP consults via video technology and the clustering of
Care Homes into designated Primary Care Networks.

Continuing Health Care (CHC)

National guidance on the restoration of NHS Continuing Health Care processes was
issued on the 21% August 2020. The guidance outlines that from the 1%t September
2020, the CHC process should resume with people who are eligible being assessed in
the usual way.

The guidance also sets out the requirement to assess and review everyone who is
currently receiving fully funded support through the national hospital discharge
arrangements in place from 19" March — 315 August 2020, by the 315t March 2021.
Additional funding has been made available nationally, and Adult Social Care are
working closely with the NHS locally to agree additional workforce capacity,
communications and joint processes to ensure everybody who needs an assessment
has one by the deadline. We have approximately 2000 'deferred assessments' to
undertake by March 2021.

Page 29



Adult Social Care Winter Plan: 2020/2021

Collaborative and innovative ways of undertaking the volume of assessments are
being developed, including the use of Trusted Assessments and video consults to
minimise any unnecessary visits to care settings.

Escalation and Resilience

Adult Social Care have worked with the NHS locally to agree daily reporting into the
Escalation Management System Plus (EMS Plus) escalation system in place across
the ICS. Hospital Discharge, and Intermediate Care Allocation Teams (ICAT)/Central
Allocation To Care and Health (CATCH) teams will add their weighted team status into
the dashboard each day giving visibility of capacity and pinch points. Work is underway
to look at how service capacity for community intermediate care services such as crisis
support and Reablement can be auto-uplifted into the dashboard each day from our
existing systems, avoiding the need for additional manual input.

Sitting behind the escalation system is a set of action cards detailing the response of
each organisation when any ICP reaches set standardised escalation trigger levels
(OPEL 1-4).

LCC Adult Sacial Care have resilience and business continuity plans in place and have
operated these across the pandemic so far. Care providers equally have these plans
in place and many have enacted them in recent months. The Quality, Contracts and
Safeguarding service work closely with care providers in ensuring plans are in place
and appropriate business continuity actions are mobilised as required.

During the pandemic, LCC developed a Care Capacity Tracker and a daily contact
process to further support the resilience of the care market. The information supplied
by providers enables full visibility of pinch points and where urgent support is required,
for example with PPE or new COVID infections. The tracker auto-uploads into the
national tracker on behalf of care providers if they want us to do that, and the process
has regularly ensured that the Lancashire data into the national tracker is the most
complete nationally. Locally, the tracker enables a wider health and care system view
of the care market, and high level data extraction is used as part of the ICS system
resilience reporting.

8. Supporting people who receive social care, the workforce,
and carers

Keeping people as safe as possible, whilst ensuring they get the social care and
support needed is integral to this winter plan. Ensuring resilience across the
workforce is critical to being able to assess for and deliver social care support.

Workforce

Across winter and the continuing pandemic, Adult Social Care continue to ensure
that people receive timely social work and Occupational Therapy assessments, to get
the right support at the right time. Additional staffing capacity has been identified to
support the response to the anticipated increases in demand from hospital discharge
and avoidance, safeguarding work, care sourcing and provider failure & outbreak
management. This will minimise the need to pull on community teams who are
working at full capacity. Business continuity and resilience plans are in place across
all LCC Adult Social Care services.

Page 30



Adult Social Care Winter Plan: 2020/2021

7 day working is in place across Acute, ICAT, CATCH, Care Navigation and
Approved Mental Health Professional (AMHP) teams, with the AMHP team operating
a 24/7 service. Outside of core working hours, the Emergency Duty Team (EDT)
responds to urgent situations.

As with previous years, annual leave is restricted across December and January to
ensure 80% of the workforce is in work, with a minimum of 60% in work in-between
Christmas and the New Year. The Acute, ICAT, CATCH and Care Navigation staff
rostered to work across the Christmas and New Year period to support the hospitals
are shared within each ICP. The response to hospital discharge continues to be a 7
day service, except for Christmas Day which is covered by the Emergency Duty
Team.

LCC have put in place a range of measures to support the health and wellbeing of
the Adult Social Care workforce. Information, help and advice is available on the
intranet dedicated Coronavirus pages, and regularly updated. This includes
information for example on COVID-19 testing, symptoms, answers to commonly
asked questions, HR and Health & Safety guidance, risk assessments, working from
home and mental health & wellbeing advice and resources. Staff are supported by
their team managers and 1:1s have a focus on wellbeing. Fortnightly staff webinars
are in place to ensure staff have access to important updates, and have the
opportunity to ask questions.

The wellbeing and resilience of care staff and providers across the wider care market
is equally critical. Providers have business continuity plans in place that contain
actions to be taken in respect of winter challenges such as inclement weather
alongside many other actions take in the continued response to the pandemic. LCC
are further supporting potential capacity gaps across winter with the Lancashire
Temporary Staffing Agency.

The national weekly testing programme is in place across Care Homes which
supports the health and wellbeing of staff, and homecare providers have been
encouraged to adopt similar regimes where they become available. The national
Infection Control Fund has been used by care providers to support the control of the
virus by enabling actions such as maintaining payments to staff who are needing to
isolate, and other measures.

The fortnightly provider webinars set up by LCC during the pandemic will continue
across winter, and these will continue to provide and interpret important information
and updates along with answers to queries raised.

People Who Receive Social Care

A range of measures have been outlined in the plan to ensure sufficient care and
assessment capacity is in place to support people across the winter period and
beyond, given the continuing challenges caused by the pandemic.

The additional capacity and measures in place focus on people who need care and
support being able to get the right care, in the right place at the right time. Care is
provided in a safe way that helps prevent the spread of COVID-19, and upholds
peoples' dignity.

Due to the continuing pandemic, additional restrictions may occur both nationally and
locally on peoples' lives. Adult Social Care will continue to respond to and work

Page 31



Adult Social Care Winter Plan: 2020/2021

within, the required public health guidance in place at any one time to ensure that
peoples' needs are met. Locally, the Director of Public Health will continue to review
and issue guidance as required for care providers to be able to protect their services
users with a balanced risk approach. This includes Care Home visiting policies and
ways to ensure that people can remain meaningfully connected within the restrictions
in place.

Adult Social Care are working through the re-opening of day services for adults with
disabilities and older people, with both the LCC services and with providers across
the wider care market. Services will be re-opened where possible and provide much
needed support for people in a COVID-19 secure way. Where people need
alternative services these are being sourced.

During the pandemic, Adult Social Care worked closely with Housing Authorities and
NHS services to provide a coordinated response to people who are homeless or
rough sleepers, ensuring that they had the support they needed to minimise the
transmission of the virus and maintain their health and wellbeing. Work is continuing
to look at the coordinated response across the winter period to enable people to get
access to the care and support they need.

This winter plan sets out the range of actions and measures being put in place not
just for those people who need Local Authority funded care including people who
manage their care via a Direct Payment, but also people who self-fund their care and
support. People who self-fund their care have access to the range of intermediate
care services such as crisis support and Reablement, and to the fully funded
'discharge to assess' pathways operating out of the hospitals under the national
guidance.

Carers

Unpaid carers make up a vital part of the support networks for people who need care,
with many unpaid carers being the sole carer for their loved ones.

Our support for unpaid carers remains robust and resilient. During the pandemic
Carers identified by the council receive regular welfare checks, guidance and support
using a range of technological channels. We have provided carers with official letters
from the county council so they can evidence their vital role and continue their hugely
important work to protect and support the most vulnerable.

Support for carers that was previously delivered at drop-in centres or coffee mornings
has now moved to online peer-support platforms and many carers have signed up for
this type of online peer support, which includes social activities such as quizzes and
information, advice and guidance on health and wellbeing.

There is a range of information available to carers both on the LCC website and also
through Carers Centres. Where unpaid carers are approaching Adult Social Care for
support in their caring role, specific Carers assessments are undertaken by local
Carers Centres and where required formal support is provided to the cared for
person.

9. Prisons

There are 5 male prisons within Lancashire, with varying degrees of social care
demand. Winter resilience planning has taken place with the two social care providers

Page 32



Adult Social Care Winter Plan: 2020/2021

who are contracted to deliver support across the Prisons, to ensure that they have
contingency plans in place to meet unexpected challenges.

Measures are in place to ensure that the men receive essential social care
assessments and support even when tighter restrictions are in place as a COVID-19
prevention or outbreak response.

Adult Social Care are working closely with Prison Governors to ensure the delivery of
social care to the men in custody mirrors as closely as possible the care and support
they would expect to receive in the community.

A new 'Buddy' scheme is now in operation as a shared programme between the
Prisons and Adult Social Care locally and the national organisation RECOOP, training
a small number of prisoners to deliver some defined low level support, which enables
those men receiving it to have greater levels of independence and emotional support.

10. Public Health

Affordable warmth

LCC works with the district councils to secure national Energy Company Obligation
and other external funding though the Cosy Homes in Lancashire (CHiL) scheme for
interventions such as first-time central heating, replacement boilers and insulation
measures. CHiL can also offer a home visit that looks at the property, heating type and
state of repair, energy usage and will provide support with fuel debt, fuel bills, switching
energy supplier etc. Cosy Homes in Lancashire projects target those households living
in fuel poverty and at greatest risk of their health being affected by having a cold home,
particularly those recently leaving hospital, but also provides an offer of support to all
households.

Crisis Support

Help with essential furniture items and white goods is available for those on a low
income needing help to maintain or set up a home. Applications to the Scheme are
made by an approved referral organisation via the online application form. To support
residents with fuel payments LCC works with the Energy Debt Team based at Citizens
Advice Preston (who cover all Lancashire districts for this service) to provide
discretionary awards for fuel tops ups as part of a package of wider advice and support
provided by experienced energy debt advisors.

Welfare Rights

Following some changes, as from April 2020 the Welfare Rights Service (WRS)
provides comprehensive and independent advice and assistance to Lancashire
residents with appeal tribunal representation, comprehensive benefit advice for people
over pension age, consultancy and training. Customers can access the service by
referral from our referral partners i.e. any LCC service, other community services such
as Citizens Advice, local councils, MPs, specialist nurses, mental health services and
any other community service and organisations signed up as a referrer.

Further information on benefits and how to access the service can be found at
https://www.lancashire.gov.uk/health-and-social-care/benefits-and-financial-help.

Contact is made within 10 working days or 2 working days for very urgent queries.
During the current pandemic, arrangements are in place to undertake hearings and
give advice remotely. The Welfare Rights Service is also developing an online training

Page 33


http://www.chil.uk.com/
https://www.lancashire.gov.uk/practitioners/health-and-social-care/crisis-support-scheme-approved-partners/
https://www.lancashire.gov.uk/health-and-social-care/benefits-and-financial-help

Adult Social Care Winter Plan: 2020/2021

program which can be accessed by LCC staff, other professionals and residents. A
guide on how to complete a Personal Independence Payment form is currently
available by registering on the LCC website and more courses and guides will be
available shortly. The Welfare Rights Service uses social media (Facebook and
Twitter) to keep people up to date with any relevant changes and information.

11. Winter and COVID-19 — Communications Arrangements

Winter

LCC has a dedicated 'Winter' page on the website delivering advice to residents such
as how to keep warm and well plus information regarding travel, gritting and weather
forecasts. Links are provided to partner sites including advice from the NHS and
Lancashire Fire and Rescue. Between the 1% November 2019 - 315 March 2020 the
site received 14,584 unique hits showing the importance and value of the provision of
information to the citizens of Lancashire.

Helpful advice is provided on the site regarding how to prepare for inclement weather
and advice around 'choosing well' with regard to accessing health services and not
increasing unnecessary pressure on GP surgeries and Hospitals. Residents are
encouraged to take up the flu jab, particularly if they are entitled to a free vaccination,
and to encourage older or vulnerable friends, family and neighbours to do the same.

The LCC Winter site will continue to be updated with relevant information and advice
throughout the winter period. During bad weather social media and press releases are
used to remind people to take care and encourage neighbours to visit those who may
be vulnerable living nearby. Key stakeholders are updated about the situation and any
effects on service delivery.

Intermediate Care Capacity

Capacity and usage information regarding intermediate care services is circulated daily
to key staff across partner agencies via the Lancashire County Council care navigation
service. This gives critical information to help good decision making in supporting
people to access the right services for their needs.

COovID-19

LCC has dedicated COVID-19 advice and information on the website, including the
latest figures, health and wellbeing advice and where to access support, and also a
myth-busting section to promote accurate information and help people make informed
decisions.

The site includes information on prevention, self-isolation and the Test and Trace
service, along with key information about Council services and how they are operating
during the pandemic.

Information regarding the Community Hubs that were set up by the District Councils to
provide support to vulnerable people during the pandemic, is detailed including direct
links to their websites.

Page 34



Adult Social Care Winter Plan: 2020/2021

Appendix A — Table of Additional Service Capacity and Costs

Approximate Number | Half year
of People Who Could | cost to
be Supported (per |end
annum) March 12 month
2021) cost
Service £ £
Home First & Crisis
Hours: up to 7000 people
Alternative to
Crisis (Home First, Crisis, Alternative to | Residential: up to 1250
Residential) people 3,226,600 | 6,453,200
Reablement Up to 2,964 people 987,012 1,974,024
Roving Nights Up to 3,000 people 116,967 233,934
Additional Social Workers | Required to meet
(ICAT/CATCH/Reablement/Safeguarding/MH) | demand 618,950 1,237,901
Required to meet
OT's demand 328,957 657,915
Required to ensure
timely response across 7
Increased Provider Leadership days 34,500 69,000
Required to ensure
timely response across 7
Additional Provider on-call days 22,500 45,000
SCSOs, Res Rehab referral management & | Required to meet
Care Co-Ordination (G6 demand 204,821 409,643
Required to meet
Additional Care Staff - res rehab demand 282,000 564,000
Required to meet
BSO demand 107,744 215,488
Additional Age UK Provision Up to 800 people 105,000 210,000
Required to meet
Restoration of CHC systems and backlog demand 125,000 250,000
Total 6,160,052 | 12,320,105
. 21 .

Page 35




Adult Social Care Winter Plan: 2020/2021

e DD e
Page 36



Agenda ltem 5

Health Scrutiny Committee
Meeting to be held on Tuesday, 3 November 2020

Electoral Division affected:
(All Divisions);

Update on suicide prevention in Lancashire and South Cumbria
(Appendix 'A' refers)

Contact for further information:
Gary Halsall, Tel: (01772) 536989, Senior Democratic Services Officer (Overview
and Scrutiny), gary.halsall@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary
An update on suicide prevention activity across Lancashire and South Cumbria.
Recommendation

The Health Scrutiny Committee is asked to note and comment on the update report.

Background and Advice

Included at appendix A is an update on suicide prevention activity across Lancashire
and South Cumbria since this matter was last considered by the committee in
December 2017 and its Steering Group in November 2019.

Chris Lee, Public Health Specialist, Lancashire County Council and Paul Hopley,
Deputy Director ICS Mental Health, Lancashire and South Cumbria Integrated Care
System (ICS) will attend the meeting and present on the key themes of the
information contained within the slides at appendix A.

The Health Scrutiny Committee is asked to note and comment on the update report.
Consultations

N/A

Implications:

This item has the following implications, as indicated:

Risk management

This report has no significant risk implications.

Lancasg.i‘[e
Soundy g@g

Page 37



Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
List of Background Papers

Paper Date Contact/Tel
None
Reason for inclusion in Part I, if appropriate

N/A

Page 38



Health Scrutiny
Committee:

Suicide Prevention
3 November 2020

6¢ abed

Chris Lee, Public Health Specialist, LCC
Paul Hopley, Deputy Director - ICS Mental Health
Healthier Lancashire and South Cumbria

Lancasbhire
County - {gfé;?-
Council ’&5‘



Contents

10 things everyone should know

Trends and challenges

« Health Scrutiny recommendations

« LCC update on Suicide Prevention activity

« Lancashire and South Cumbria Integrated Care System
update

COVID19 pandemic response

ot abed

Lancasbhire
County (G
Council @g{)




L ebed

10 things that everyone needs to know about suicide prevention

Suicides take a high toll

There are specific groups of
people at higher risk of suicide

There are specific factors that
increase the risk of suicide

Preventing suicide is achievable

Suicide is everybody’s business

Restricting access to the means
for suicide works

Supporting people bereaved by
suicide is an important
component of suicide prevention
strategies

Responsible media reporting is
critical

The social and economic cost to
suicide is substantial and adds to
the case for suicide prevention
work

Local suicide prevention
strategies must be informed by
evidence

There were 5,021 deaths from suicide registered in England in 20181 and for every person who dies there are likely to be 135
people who will have known them and therefore may be affected in some way

Three in four deaths by suicide are by men. The highest suicide rate in England is among men aged 45-49.1 People in the
lowest socio-economic group and living in the most deprived geographical areas are 10 times more at risk of suicide than
those in the highest socio-economic group living in the most affluent areas.

The strongest identified predictor of suicide is previous episodes of self-harm. Mental ill-health and substance misuse also
contribute to many suicides. Suicide prevention strategies must consider and link to programmes of early identification and
effective management of self-harm, mental ill-health and substance misuse

The delivery of a comprehensive strategy is effective in reducing deaths by suicide through combining a range of integrated
interventions that build community resilience and target groups of people at heightened risk of suicide. Directors of public
health and health and wellbeing boards have a central role. Their involvement is crucial in coordinating local suicide
prevention efforts and making sure every area has a strategy in place

A whole system approach is required, with local government, primary care, health and criminal justice services, voluntary
organisations and local people affected by suicide having a role to play. Suicide prevention can also be part of work
addressing the wider determinants of health and wellbeing.

This is one of the most evidenced aspects of suicide prevention and can include physical restrictions, as well as improving
opportunities for intervention

Compared with people bereaved through other causes, individuals bereaved by suicide have an increased risk of suicide and
suicidal ideation, depression, psychiatric admission as well as poor social functioning.

Research shows that inappropriate reporting of suicide may lead to imitative or 'copycat' behaviour.

The economic cost of each death by suicide of someone of working age is estimated to be £1.67 million. This covers the
direct costs of care, indirect costs relating to loss of productivity and earnings, and the intangible costs associated with pain,
grief and suffering

Local government should consider the national evidence alongside local data and information to ensure local needs are
addressed.

Source: PHE, 2020



Current trend data: ‘suspected data’ and requires validation*

RTS continuous data for suicide and drug related death from 01/04/19- 30/09/20

bttt

Month & Year

2 9bed
Number of suspected deaths

Lancasbhire

County -~(G=39.
www.lancashire.gov.uk Couné}lfl ".}3




Key challenges

e Suicide and mental health is still a taboo in society
e Monitoring COVID impact in Lancashire and appropriate responses
e Developinglocal responses to suicide prevention.

¢t abed

e PH capacity given COVID — maintaining the whole system approach

e Funding ICS work —a current request for support from local authorities.

e Working with CDOP and SUDC to establish public health input and
understand the contagion response and support.

Lancasbhire

County ‘va'.';?}-
www.lancashire.gov.uk Council (‘%“‘{)

”




Health Scrutiny recommendations

Recommendation 1
The Leader nominate a member Champion for Mental Health and Suicide Prevention

e Cllr Pope has recently taken on the role of Elected Member Champion for Mental Health and Suicide Prevention;
previously Cllr Turner and ClIr Rear agreed to take on this roll temporarily and have attended a regional training
event specifically for Elected Members, organised by PHE/LGA.

e Cllr Turner fully supports the idea of creating a Mental Health champion for Lancashire County Council. This would
certainly help raise awareness of the issue and would additionally help in terms of providing financial support/ seed
funding for local projects which support those facing any mental health problems. This will be brought to full
council accordingly when we can appoint somebody to the position.

e ClIr Turner attends the Elected Members Mental Health Champion Network and Cllr Pope has been invited.
e Officers will support Cllr Pope in this role and will update re the broader LCC and ICS developments.

71 obed

Lancasbhire
County - i""""i?'

www.lancashire.gov.uk Council %&'&9
UH




Health Scrutiny recommendations

Recommendation 2

The Leader and Cabinet Member for Health and Wellbeing write to all district councils in Lancashire to consider
identifying an elected member for the role of Mental Health and Suicide Prevention Champion

e Given the COVID impact on local communities | would recommend that we revisit this and write to all districts as a
reminder, recommending that they select a Mental Health and Suicide Prevention Champion in areas that have not yet
done so. In light of the emerging evidence of impact from the lockdown and COVID itself, this would be timely.

Gt obed

Recommendation 3

Options for Elected Member Champion involvement in the newly formed Lancashire Suicide Prevention and Self
Harm Partnership be considered

e C(lIr Turner and others have attended the Partnership, providing semi regular Elected Member input.

e C(lir Pope has been invited to the November 2020 meeting.

Lancasbhire

N - “ﬁ\,
www.lancashire.gov.uk gggﬂ(‘?:l %'O‘)




Health Scrutiny recommendations

Recommendation 4

A training session on Mental Health awareness be arranged for all the appointed Mental
Health and Suicide Prevention Champions and any County Councillors who wish to attend

9t abed

e Cllr Turner and Cllr Rear attended a regional training session for Elected Members. Further training was
planned and offered to other Elected Members, however this had to be cancelled due to low demand.
Further training is to be developed through the Elected Members Mental Health Champion Network.

Lancasbhire

: County -{Z=:8.
www.lancashire.gov.uk Council ‘ % )




Health Scrutiny recommendations

Recommendation 5

A progress report be presented to the Health Scrutiny Steering Group in six months' time with attendance from the Mental
Health and Suicide Prevention Champions

Recommendation 6

Progress be monitored by the Committee on an annual basis with an update report to be presented to the Health Scrutiny
Committee in December 2018.

/v obed

LCC officers have presented updates to the Health Scrutiny Committee and Health Scrutiny Steering Group (Dr Sakthi Karunanithi, Director
Public Health and Wellbeing and Chris Lee, Public Health Specialist, Behaviour Change) including the system wide suicide prevention work
going on across the Integrated Care System footprint, as well as LCC specific developments:

e  Progress of the Lancashire suicide and self-harm group,

e Integrated Care System (ICS) suicide prevention oversight group,
e Real Time Surveillance developments,

e Training developments.

Lancash.ige

County ‘@a :

www.lancashire.gov.uk Council %&E‘;}“))
u‘




Principle Objective and Areas for Action

e Toreduce the suicide rate in the general population
e Provide better support for those bereaved or affected by suicide.

There are 7 areas of action;
reduce the risk of suicide in key high-risk groups
tailor approaches to improve mental health in specific groups

8t abed

reduce access to the means of suicide

provide better information and support to those bereaved or affected by suicide
support the media in delivering sensitive approaches to suicide and suicidal behaviour
support research, data collection and monitoring

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.

reduce rates of self harm as a key indicator of suicide risk

Lancasbhire

N - “ﬁ\,
www.lancashire.gov.uk gggn(% %'O‘)




LCC update on Suicide Prevention activity

e LGA Sector Lead Improvement (SLI) workshop

e Lancashire Suicide Prevention and Self Harm Prevention Partnership

e Pan Lancashire and Cumbria Suicide Prevention Leads regular meetings
e Supporting districts; prevention and intervention, policies and guidance
e Supporting COVIDag hubs; signposting and advising

e Supporting World Suicide Prevention day

e Safeguarding; Sudden Unexpected Death of a Child (SUDC)/Child Death Overview Panel
(CDOP)

e Mental health support in educational establishments and communities
e YMHFA Training and Suicide Awareness
e Work place health

61 abed

Lancasbire
_ County =
www.lancashire.gov.uk Council ?g“{)




0G abed

District Suicide Prevention Planning

Rossendale Suicide and DRD Logic Model Action Plan

(lncreued Awareness of suicide risks and * Improved MH and wellness \
prevention * Promote activities to improve
+Time to change campaign - sign up

*Reduce stigma - Samaritans/Papyrus promotion

+Promoting the Orange Button through training

*Help is at hand leaflet

+Plan for events such as World Suicide Prevention
Day/World Mental health day; communities

*Work with local providers such as Inspire and
Young Addaction (LCC Commissioned services)

*Maintain task and finish group - RTS updates

\oxooth - digital for young people

* Media - sensitive approaches (ST07)

engagement/reduce social isolation/target
specific groups at risk; middle aged men (ICS)
campaign - utilise Men in Sheds/Physical
activity groups/Substance Misuse providers
« Standard item on the agenda: HWBP/PCN
(
+ Communities and providers are more skilled
* ICS have organized for Samaritans to deliver ST08 to identify individuals at risk of suicide and
respond
« Utilise the Lancashire Mind and PAC Offer of
« Restrict access to means and respond effectively to training locally
high risk locations - use Samaritans signs where * Review District Council Policy - develop Mental
\appropriate - reflect on current guidance health Champions
> 4

* Restrict access to means (ST08).

training
* Zero Suicide Alliance Training as standard




LGA Sector Led Improvement and district working

e Due to the success of the implementation of the Rossendale District Suicide planning there was an
opportunity to apply for LGA support to engage with districts. As a result the LGA supported LCC Public
Health team to organise an event at County Hall where district staff and members were invited, with the
intention to share good practice and develop local responses to the suicide prevention agenda. Key
elements of the workshop included:

e Setout the aims of Sector Led Improvement approaches

e Attendees with lived experience who attend the Lancs Suicide and Self Harm meetings attended to
provide their personal experience

LG 8bed

e We alsoinvited Rossendale staff to discuss their experience of working on an area of a ‘taboo’ subject and
how the support from colleagues helped them engage with staff and communities and improve their offer
of support and training. Outcomes are covered in the above ‘So what have we done to date’.

L So what have we done to date?
overnment Vs §

Association
o All staff undertaken Zero Suicide Alliance Training

. . 1 Lancashire Minds SafeTALK training in March- 2 sessions
SulcitelErevertion 1 Working with PPU to intfroduce training for taxi drivers

1 Signed up to ‘Time to Change’

Barbara Brady, LGA Contractor 1 Raising awareness at Community Partnership meetings
Kay Burkett, Programme Manager, Care & Health o1 Stronger links with LCC Public Health

Improvement , LGA

O Awareness raising through digital and social media

e 5l Gon it medans

o BEGINNING THE CONVERSATION




2 obed

Lancashire Suicide Prevention and Self
Harm Prevention Partnership

Lancashire Suicide Prevention and Self Harm
Prevention Partnership

World Suicide Prevention Day -
Sept 2020

Inviting guest speakers e.qg. Highways
England, Samaritans, Papyrus, local
VCFS organisations, Councillors,
Providers, Safequarding, Schools and
those with lived experience)

Sharing good practice

Whole system approach — Suicide is
everyone'’s business

Launch of Orange Button
Social media pack
Steering group

Wider engagement of partners and
providers

Working with schools




¢G abed

SUDC/CDOP

Developing clear protocols and pathways with the Sudden
Unexpected Death of a Child (SUDC) /Child Death Overview Panel
(CDOP)

Understanding the importance of Public Health roles and
expectations of intervention

Clear protocol for contagion interventions/ flowchart to show
processes

Familiarity with SUDC/ Contagion protocol

Ensuring that individuals are operating within legal (e.g. coronial)
processes

The Management of Sudden and
Unexpected Deaths in Childhood
(SUDC)*

Blackburn with Darwen, Blackpool & Lancashire
Guidelines

*Children aged under 18

October 2019




G obed

Mental Health support in educational
establishments for staff and wider communities

Anxiety, Resilience, ACE's, Attachment, MH Awareness

Anxiety, Resilience, ACE's, Attachment, MH Awareness

Moved to online training with a focus on Trauma Informed
Practice and also Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACE's)

Attended online training sessions

Positive
Action in the
Community

PAC

1,337
3,020
412

269 individuals
who have accessed over 1,000 sessions

5,038

Training sessiorns Train the Trainer”
for school staff on wellbeing and mo-mm u-:‘ x
cYP tal self-care support for wi
heclth school approaches ancaster €23
o miversity
& a0 = - =
b % 2sa

Practical, knowledge and sidlis-focused training

including

- ACEs and understanding mantal haaith snd resilsncs
- Supporting young pecple with sndety

« Using attachment theory in interventions

Supparting
collabaratan via
virtual networks of
school staff and

reflective practice

$a7

Fundet oy
County .
Gouncll

Partnerships with

and
E-:..'...u.. -

Trotning on angoging

YMHFA 1 day

YMHFA 2 day

ASIST (Suicide Awareness) — 2
day

Safetalk — 2 day

YMHFA 1 day

YMHFA 2 day

ASIST (Suicide Awareness) — 2
day

Safetalk — 2 day

YMHFA Online

60
195
154

119

528 in Total
53

198

157

95
503 in Total
22*

1,031

- Communicating with pupils who are distressed
Cluster, locality training
based or INSET sessions at
sessions for Lancaster university,
staff teams and community

venues across the
[TT) county s

IT:-{ [11] pi
Support and information and
training to training around
establish nam stress and
peer mantoring L 4
schemes

4 e

Training is offered free of charge to all pnmary and
secondary schich and calieges in Lancashire

iy o with and infarming
o parents of emotional
health itrotegies

Our traireng & devigned 1o be relevant and usesble:
In shodl witings

Delivred by o tearn of cinical psyehologists working
& Lancaster University with experience of working in
CAMMS setiings

Traning programimes are pubinher each term
Chester-based trai
arranged ia lehu

n-schosl Masom can be
acuk

We svaluste all our work. and our outcomas and
ewdiiack show that aur iraining & weheed by schools,
and makes a differsnce

Full day traimeng dates and bockings can e madle via
the PAC website Leto/dewve 09 ¢ 000 Ul AT

For more information & how to access the

service, contact lehss@lancaster acuk

www lehss co.uk

Falbow uy @ Langiliichooi

tuce book com/lancashirremotionalhesith




Workplace health: Focus on LCC staff

e Aguide for employees and managers to provide information, advice and signposting for suicide prevention has been
produced.

e Related guides have also been produced for mental health, managing stress and workplace resilience which aim to reduce the
escalation of potential cases. All guides have been widely and regularly promoted across LCC. These guides, in a revised
form, have also been made available to County Councillors.

e Asuicide escalation procedure has been developed to give guidance of where and how to obtain support for individuals and
managers supporting staff in crisis.

e g months support from Remploy and Able Futures for staff with a mental health condition which is impacting on their ability
to work.

GG obed

e Available support from the Employee Support Team — working with PH Behaviour Change.

e Aguide has been produced to provide support, advice and signposting for staff exposed to trauma with advice on how to
improve self-awareness and self-care.

e A Mental Health and Trauma Support in the workplace briefing paper has been produced proposing that psychological
support is made available in the workplace for staff who experience direct or indirect trauma as part of their role. This support
would aim to reduce the impact on mental health and wellbeing and develop peer support that will build resilience in teams
that are regularly exposed to emotionally and/or physically challenging and sensitive situations as part of their role.

e Pilot —clinical supervision for trauma informed support. Options are currently being explored to develop a range of
psychological interventions for employees who need individual or team support. L
ancasbire

Coun - “ﬁ ).
www.lancashire.gov.uk COUI"I(% %'O‘)




9G abed

Healthier

Lancashire &
24 South Cumbria

¢«

Suicide Prevention Programme- Lancashire
and South Integrated Care System- 2020

Web healthierlsc.co.uk | Facebook @HealthierLSC | Twitter @HealthierLSC



.G obed

Contents

1. Suicide Prevention Oversight Board- Terms of Reference and Purpose
2. Suicide Prevention Oversight Board- Key Roles and Responsibilities

3. Suicide Prevention Logic Model Action Plan

4. Suicide Prevention Logic Model- Leadership Pillar

5. Suicide Prevention COVID 19 Logic Model

6. Real Time Surveillance- Information Sharing Agreement and Principles
7. Real Time Surveillance Product- example

8. Suicide Prevention Policy

9. Outcomes and Values

10. Testimonials



8G abed

Suicide Prevention Oversight Board- Terms of Reference and
Purpose

Chair: Sakthi Karunanithi, Director of Public Health, Lancashire County Council

Deputy Chair: Paul Hopley, Deputy Director, MH ICS Team

The Lancashire and South Cumbria ICS Suicide Prevention Multi Agency Oversight Board was established
in 2017 to seek greater co-ordination of responses to and understanding of patterns of suicide and to
ensure suicide reduction activity does not get overlooked during the re-shaping of the public sector. The
Board has facilitated joint working and is regarded as a national example of good practice. Its membership
consists of public, private and 3™ Sector organisations.

" Purpose of the Oversight Board

> To provide strong leadership and strategic oversight in advancing support and advocacy for suicide
prevention across Lancashire and South Cumbria.

» To coordinate the delivery of the ICS Logic Model Plan and the NHS England Suicide target of a 10%
reduction.

To ensure there is a multi-agency approach to suicide prevention across the ICS footprint.



6G obed

Suicide Prevention Oversight Board- Key Roles and
Responsibilities

To support the implementation of the sub-regional Suicide Prevention Logic Model action plan
To receive briefings/ updates and review the actions from the Logic Model workstreams

To lend support to the implementation of recommendations from the Operational Task Groups

L=

As key partners to provide insight, expertise, and guidance to the Suicide Prevention Oversight Board and
Operational Task Groups to better prevent, understand and respond to suicides, self-harm and attempt suicides
5. Provide support and assurance to the Lancashire and South Cumbria ICS Board, local Health and Wellbeing

Boards and Safeguarding Boards that suicide prevention actions are being conducted in line with appropriate
guidelines and governance
6. To support the implementation and provide guidance/ expertise across the system during COVID 19 pandemic
and to support the delivery of the COVID Suicide Prevention Logic Model, which aligns to the overarching SP

Logic model action plan



09 abed

L& SC ICS Suicide Prevention Logic Model Action Plan

® A multi agency Suicide Prevention Logic Model has been adopted by the ICS Suicide

Prevention Oversight Board and partners to drive forward the delivery of the Suicide
Prevention Programme.

" It has been developed into 5 pillars:

= Leadership
= Prevention

= [ntervention
= Postvention
» |ntelligence

® A copy of the Logic Model can be found on the next slide but the full plan is available
here: https://www.lancashire.gov.uk/media/907935/lancs-sc-sp-logic-model1.pdf




19 ebed

Lancashire and South Cumbria STP
Suicide Prevention Logic Model

Long Tenm

Vizion Lancashire and South Cumbria residents are
emotionally resilient and have positive mental health

Outcomes

Long Term Outcome
| Reduction in suicides

Intermediate Intermediate Intermediate Outcome Intermediate Intermediate Intermediate Intermediate
Outcomes Outcome 1 cmn z_m s Outcome 3 Outcome 4 Cutcome 5 Outcome &
A sfrong integrated Irnination of sucsdes for in- Cl=ar pathway of cars for Effective support to To provide better Improved use of
Suicide Prevention r;;eml::t and WWFW' S and Adults who Seff those who are information and support fo evidence, data
Action Pian that is T S S Harm that meets MIGE affected/bereaved by thase affected by Suicide Znd infelbgence
owned by sl kay 'nduu:lirg.”Prim HjeEH FE:E-:E guidance suicide and those ot risk of suicide
siskehobders i Custody -~
Short Term
Outcomes
LEADERSHIP (10s 1-5) PREVENTION ({I0s 1-5) INTERVENTION (10s 1-3) POSTVENTION (I0s 183 ) INTELLIGENCE (10 1& 6
ST Qutcome 1 Sl S e Short Term Outcome 11 Short Term Outcome 15
£n =fiactive Suicide Prevention Incressed swarensss of suicide risks PvEmet i s P pRE 0 Sel illll?hl'l Term ﬂutcé:lr;le 17 =k s e i S
Cwarsight Board and suicide prevention harm, nsuring care mests NICE Il Tose bEHE.'a'_-l'E y suicide eyaluation system io track
5T Outcome 5 ida will be offered timely and [progress
ST Cutcome 2 Irnproved mentsi bealth and wellness ! S appropriate information and

Greater integration of suicide
reduction actvities within other
strategiss and senvice plans

Short Term Owtcome 3

Secure high lewsl Langs, and South
Cumbria political support for sucide
prevention, with support from local
palitical mental health champions

Short Term Outcome B
Communities and senvice providers
are more skilled 1o identfy individuals
31 risk of suicide and respond
aSpprogristely
Short Termn Outcome T

The madia delivers sensitnes
spproaches to suicide and suicidsd
behavicur

Short Term Cutcome 8

Restrict access to means and
resgond effectively to High risk
locstions:

Short Tesmn Outcome 3

Incressed swarensss of impsct of
Adverse Childhood Expensnces
Short Tesm Outcome 10
Diewedopment of an Cifendsr MH
Fathway forwhen relzasead in to the
COUTHTILANIEY

Short Term Outcome 12

Adoption and full implementation of 3
Perfect Depression Cars Pathway that
me=is MICE guidance

Short Term Outcome 13

High risk groups ane effechwely
supported, and risks minimised through
effectve protocols and safeguarding
praciices

Short Termn Outcome 14

247 functioning CRHTT that are high
CORE fidsfity

Short Tesm Outcome 15

Liaizon Mertal Health Teams that mest
DIORE 24 standards

Short Term Ouwtcome 16

Dl Disgnosis pathways, ensuring
cane mests MICGE pudance (MG58) are
sgresd and implemeantad

offered support by an
appropriate bereavement
services within 72 hours

Short Term Quicome 138

All identified suicide clusters
have a community response
plan and =chools have a post
suicide intervention protocol in
place

Short Term Cwutcome 20

To dewslop a consistent Suicide
Audit iempiate and scheduls is
agreed by all LAs

Short Term Owicome 21

To hawes ‘Resl-Time Data®
surveidflance system 3crass
Langs+ SC re suicide and
attempi=s and drug refsted deaths

Short Term Cwtcome 22

Sharing lkessons l=amt, best
prachice and recormmendations
from Sernous Case Rewviewes!' Child
Di=ath Creendsw Reviews




29 abed

LEADERSHIP

Reduction in suicides

Reduction in gelf-harm

The impact of suicide, on those affected by it, is

Long Term
Outcomes BERCLS
Intermediate Outcome 1 Outcome 2 Qutcome 3 Outcome 4 Outcome 5 Outcome 6
Outcomes A& strong integrated Elimination of Clear pathway of Effective support to those who To develop and Improved use of

Suicide Prevention | suicides for in-patient care for CYP and are affectedbereaved by suicide | support our workforce evidence, data and

Action Plan that is and community Adults who Self o aszess and support intelligence

owned by all key mental health care Harm that meets those who may be at

stakeholders settings MICE guidance risk of suicide
Short Term Cutcome 1 Short Term Qutcome 2 Short Term Outcome 3

Short An effective Suicide Prevention Board Secure high level Langs and South Cumbria political
e Great_ﬂr _'mtegratian of syi{:ide leduct_iun activiies suppcrt_ t_'ur suicide prevention, vﬂﬂl_mppon fru_m
Outcomes within other strategies and service plans local political mental health and suicide prevention

champions

& SP Oversight Board meetings held each year

Suicide Prevention Commitments and Statements

All HEWE have agreed the confent and signed up fo

Signs of are included in all key stakeholders policies and support the delivery of the | angs. and SC SP Action
BUCCESS L& Safeguarding Boards are provided with regular strategies i.e. HR Policies Plan
updates on progress
Ewvery organisafion has s suicide prevention policy All LAs have a MH and Suicide Prevention Elected
for staff Member Champion
Reach Key Stakeholders, Safeguarding Boards, LA Suicide | Local Authorifies, Primary and Secondary Care Lecal Authorities- Health and Well Being Boards,
Prevention groups, STP Govemance meefings, organisations, Police, Fire Service, NWAS, CYP Elected Members
Local Authonties, Pimary and Secondary Care service, Commissioners and 3 Sector semvices, Local Communities,
organisations, Police, Fire Service, NWAS, CYP Private Sector (particulary Construction, Carer
service, Commissioners and 3rd Sector senvices, Organisations)
Local Communities
Output Commitment from all key stakeholders to reduce Suicide Prevention is seen as the responsibility for Elected Member Mental Health and Suicide

and prevent Suicides

all in Langs+ SC

Prevention champions in each of the LAs

Suicide
Prevention
Leadership
Activity

24



€9 abed

Bi Monthly SP Oversight Board meeting

To attend at each Health and Wellbeing Board fo_
seek support for the Langs and SC STP action plan
action plans

To provide update repors fo local Safeguarding
Boards and Health and Wellbeing Eoards on the
development and delivery! implementation of the
Suicide Prevention STP Plan

Strategic Leaders pledges/ commitment fo deliver of
the Suicide Prevention Action Plan

Strategic Leads across | angs and 3C to consider o
siqn up fo the No More Zero Suicide Alliance

To develop a_Suicides Prevention narrative and key
areas for action for sirategies and plans where
snicide and suicide prevention iz a related issue or
risk .9 drugs and alcohol, long-term conditions (

key stakeholders to audit current policies and
procedures to establish if suicide preventions risk of
suicide iz included

Mapping of key stakeholders data to allow for
zegmentation and targeting for those high at nsk of
suicide

Define the role of Mental Health and Suicide
Prevention Champicn

LA PH Leads to prezent the role and expectation to
LA Cabinet meetings

To identify Elected Members that will take on the
role of Mental Health and Suicide Prevention
Champion

Train the MH/ Suicide Prevention Champions

Inputs

Crficer time to attend meetings
Officer time to produce update reports

Financial

Orfficer time to conduct audit of policies

Analytical

Training of Mental Health and Suicide Prevention
Elected Member Champions

Officers time
Financial

Training

Suicide
Prevention
Leadership
Activity
continued



79 abed

Real Time Survelillance-
Information Sharing
Agreement

® A Multi Agency Information Sharing

Protocol has been developed, signed
and agreed to support the Suicide
Prevention Programme. This has
enabled L&SC ICS to receive Real
Time suspected suicide reports from
Cumbria and Lancashire Constabulary,
normally within 24 hours of death.

Information Sharing Statement under the County-wide Crime and Digorder
Reduction Partnerghip Information Sharing Agreement

State the specific purpose of this information sharing

a) To enable analytical profiling of the "alert’ to identify key future prevention cpporunities,
risk groups, problem areas, method, gender, sthnicity, age, previous medical history
factors, criminal justice background factors. It will also enable public health to tnigger a
contagion response for children, under 18, suspected of suicide and where a potential
emerging cluster is identified.
Shared analytical profiles will not contain any personsl data. Personal Data is reguired
to interrogate other associated health data systems.

b) To complete the statutory ‘suicide sudit’ requirement. This is 8 Local Authority function,

which i= now completed on a Lancashire South Cumbria footprint.

Which post holders will be responsible for this on a day to day basis? State Post and
Organisation

The data will be processed by NHS analysis to support Healthier Lancashire and South
Cumbria Multi Agency Strategic Lead for the Sustainable Transformation Parinership Mental
Heslth work steam.

The data will be obtained from the Constabulary using dats from the G72 template.

What information will be shared?

The data hes been sanitised to remove any personal identifiable information but will allow for
analysis to take place to support the project. A copy of the dats that is being provided is
aftached

Of note: The data iz afready provided by the Coroners Office after an inquest, however thiz

can introduce delays hence the requesf

How will the information be shared?
The data will be collected directly by the MHS Analyst from Lancashire Constabulary
premises and checked to ensure only information agreed by & Lancashire Constabulary

Analysts prior to being taken off site.

26



G9 abed

Real Time Surveillance Key Guiding Principles

1. Suicide Prevention is everyone's Business.

2. We agree to share information and data across organisations to increase learning and
new action opportunities.

3. We will be intelligence led in all our responses to real time information.

4. We will work together and collaboratively to increase our capacity to prevent self harm
and suicide.

5. We share the ‘prevention’ challenge and accept mutual accountability to reduce
suicide and self harm.

6. Rapid delivery of local responses to local problems supported by timely research and
analysis.



Real Time Surveillance- Data Connectors and Flow Model

hs...‘
‘ =
Contagion Clusters

Learn/ —
isk .
Review e Localnrﬂ--

e —

Intelligence Led approach

99 abed




L9 obed

Real Time Surveillance- How the information is used across the ICS...

Intelligence Led approach

®  Weekly reports developed for In hospital/ Out of Hospital and MH cell structures within ICS

® Real Time Surveillance Panel established- Multi agency partners to look at what the data is
telling us

®  Cluster/ Contagion meetings held when identified i.e. CYP deaths, unusual MO etc.
® |dentify high risk locations- target hardening e.g. car park in Blackpool

® Trend Analysis

® Targeted social media campaigns into high risk locations

® Hard copies of campaign materials into Pharmacies in high risk locations, identified by the data



Real Time Surveillance Product- example

LANCASHIRE & SOUTH CUMBRIA ICS SUSPECTED SUICIDE RTS DASHBOARD: JAN - MAY EXAMPLE

Q Hanging () Drug Related Suicide (53 Asphyxistion @ JumpsFan (B Self Harm
B eowning @ CM P g Qi OrFie P weapon @ intentional ATA
© Electiocunon




Suicide Prevention Policy Development

Example - Suicide Prevention Policy

1 Intreduction and Background

Suicide Prevention Policy for Employers

lives are spent in the workplace, the warkplace can be a place where suppart is offered. This Suicide

is designed to help, support and educate

yane in the arganisation around the
sks of suicide within the workplace, promoting good practice, and encaouraging healthy
ave stigma.  This policy sits alongside our existing Health and Wellbeing palicies

[ | The ICS SP team have developed, In partnershlp Wlth PubIIC x.';:r::r::::rnnu::":xjm'ngpuJi:.'e;Jsuppurzinguur:ummi:munzunder:henuauhandsmma:

Work Act 1974,

Health colleagues, a generic Suicide Prevention Policy for 2 ourOrgaatonaland cutusl commiment
supporting employers across the ICS. The Policy covers: CUARCE e T 1o e e s, v T G

b identify what immediate actions you can deliver. Mare information about Time to
Change can be faund hare

° Staff Wh O re port fee I | n g Su |C|d a I 21 We understand that whilst suicide cannot shways be prevented, if we understand mare  about the

factors that may increase the risk, then we may be able to redoce the risk within our workplace.

There are a number of factars that may increase an individual's risk of suicide, jand these are

° Staff Who flnd Someone that haS dled by SUICIde identified within 2.2.1) and we recagnise that these may apply to our current emplayers. This policy

is designed nat only to suppart employees wha are at risk of suicide, but also to help employess to

69 abed

be able to support co-workers, and direct them to agpropriate means of support. Early

° Postve ntl on su p p o) rt fo r Staﬁ: identification and support can significantly reduce the risk of suicide within our workfarce.

Our Employes and Family Assistance Programme/Employee Astistance Programme, or ather

® An employers toolkit has also been developed a link to T

suppart and counselling services to employees who may have thoughts of suicide (reference relevant
section, or guisklink ta LAR)

information for employers can be found here:

Samaritans and Rethink. Helplines and suppart systems have also been included within our Mental

Health/Mental Wellbeing Policy and within our Em ployes Assistance Programme fasert fink]

" https://www.healthierlsc.co.uk/malesuicide 221 {optionl o) Sactors he o crese  iniiduls ok of e conncute

= Prior suicide attempts

" https://www.healthierlsc.co.uk/application/files/3315/8090/897 - mobmtcnewe

Mental illness such of depression, posttroumatic stress disorder, bipolor disorder,

7/20191016 SuicideCampaignToolkit.pdf e e N AR

means, specific to pour isation, including i wark locotions; hozordous
materials)

*  Relationship breok down

+  Debt ond financiol insecurity

- Dnmgs!kﬂhu.rsqll




0/ abed

Suicide Prevention
Suicide Prevention COVID Campaign- 2"
Phase
Social Media campaign targeting 4 key
groups:
* Young people and older teenagers.

« Parents who are juggling home working
and limited childcare.

» Men who have been furloughed, made
redundant or who are self-employed.

 Older and vulnerable people getting used
to the new normal.

Stay in the present, take it a
day at a time, and chat to

your friends about how about a way forward. E
you're feeling. w % —— 8
)

Jr
Ty
.

it it e

: - sckidie
ﬂphwh&?zcﬁzm i ‘o bt 1100 i fhe Walltsing b Manial xhum
] skhé PhawEh Tartrey Bearvac om 011 1111 e

o e HELLO o the Walwio & et ;L;g‘m o cufl Bemariians on 118 125

aa Semarfin: on 116 125

LET'S LET'S g

School holidays might :eemhhe
adisruption to the family routines
we've created over the past few

Go at your own pace,
and chat to friends and
family about it. [kl

i e i i DA TR e iesben ro
cmseemacan  Phibe e R Y

o call Samarfian oo 115 123 I oo nE LT




|, ebed

Suicide Prevention

Suicide Prevention COVID Campaign- 2"

Phase
— Updated materials available to order.

— Targeted social media ads running now

— Distribution to Community Pharmacies, Urgent
Care Centres, A&Es

— Pubs to be targeted with messages on back of
toilet doors

— ROCK FM adverts currently running
* Instream advertising in high risk locations

* Including in ROCK FM newsletter being distributed to
25,000 people across Lancashire and South Cumbria

Stay in the present, take it a

day at a time, and chat to

your friends about how

you're feeling. EE

o s

Ty
—

Y

L] ] S cull B LECFT
e et BT S TR

g e HELLD fo fhe Welltmicn & Masiet
Thaa¥: Tucrteny Baryicn om (7900 033 246

‘o call Semarfimns on 116 L2

LET'S

School holidays might :eemhhe
adisruption to the family routines
we've created over the past few

Go at your own pace,
and chat to friends and
family about it. [kl

o ymum = ‘Shan cal S LECFT

b sy o
2 tard HELLD i thae WoalTim 2 e
mmmnmﬁu

o call Samarfian oo 115 123

KEeP
TALKING |/

‘o call Bemarinson 116 125

LET'S M ¥

EELLD [
e iy

- o0 N6 £




Suicide Prevention

Suicide Prevention Isolation Campaign

during COVID- Phase 1 results
Social Media campaign targeting 4 key

groups:
— Older Teenagers
— Families and Carers
— Middle Aged Men

— Vulnerable groups that are shielding
within our communities

Z/) 9bed

LET'S.
IKEEP
TALKING -

It's okay to feel anxious
and overwhelmed.
Take regular breaks from
social media and call your
friends.

LET'S

[4EEP It's okay to feel
: anxious and
TﬁLHINB overwhelmed.
Take regular breaks

from social media

ooooooooo

KEEP
__..,_;Tétﬁms ”

£ !; :& @
1
y
o

Remote working ahd !

=
Let 1y in touch! Let's stay in touch!

T2 ing to cope then text If you're struggling to cope then text
HELLO to the Wel & Mantal Haalth HELLO to the Wellbaing & Mental Health Healthier
Texting Servica on 07860 022 846 fener. & exting Service on 07850 0. 4;m"m
Or call the Mental Health Helpline on South Cumbria call the Mental Health Helpline on South Cumbric.
0800 915 4640 TheC: 0 915 4640 #StaitTheConvemation
O cal Samartams on 16123 et caakMeeiabie Aot
LET'S

home-schooling can be

a challenge.

ake time to connect with
family & friends.

Lat's stay in touch!
If you'ra struggling to copa than text
HELLO to the Wellbeing b Mental Health H

Texting Service on 07880 022 846 Lngd“"ﬂ;:hil( &
Or call the Mental Health Helpline on South Cumbria
0800 915 4640 #5tariTheConversation.
Or call Samaritans on 116123 bosithierec conblMontaHestSapport

Isolation can be an
anxious time.
If you're worried, talk to

someone about it.

O eall Ssmaritans on 116123




¢/ obed

Suicide Prevention
Suicide Prevention Isolation Campaign

Campaign has been rolled out across the ICS
via: B eiahies

» Children & Young People
Posters & Banners

— Facebook
— Twitter
— Instagram

Printed material sent out to:
— Community Pharmacists
— Community Hubs mm_
— GP surgeries
— Urgent Care Centres
— A&Es

Digital versions available for screens in key
locations across ICS

LET'S
KEEP
TALKING

LET'S
KEER
TALKING

and call your friends.

3 . n0m
By
&Y 7
T
Sir
e |
11
o
o ey a
L [ RRE
b A

o bl

It's okeay to feel
anxious and




Suicide Prevention
Suicide Prevention Isolation Campaign- Videos

Videos have been developed
and ran via paid adverts on ey
social media. Here is a link to
the videos:

) abed

https://www.youtube.com/watch
?v=hq2e6fkBCIU&Ilist=PLDsfv3
alkFGicPNRpfRcbM8Re-

P33MOv6&index=3




Suicide Prevention iekp. V I D

TALKING - TALKING ool

Suicide Prevention Isolation Campaign- f
Phase 1 results
L -9

Results already seen: e e

and call your friends.
Take regular breaks from

Hi, how
r are you?
you too,
social media and call your

— Increased traffic to HLSC dedicated friends.

If you're struggling to cope then text

Suicide Prevention pages Gt B
— 590% increase in new visitors to site
pages
— Intelligence led, using RTS data,
targeted facebook adverts to key e s,

groups in high risk suicide area- Sreing oo i e
I’eaChed 60 ,OOO peOple f%kﬁytlﬁ;teonao;mectmth kto

G/ abed

LET'S

e | KEEP !
Tk 0 TALKING

Let's stay in touch!

Lef n touch! i b N
‘to cope then text ‘you're struggling to cope then
o M HELLO to the Wellbeing & Mental Health
m%ng&umnm:ﬁganuzz = ll_*sdlh-uh_ ‘exting Service on 07860 022 3 :‘M
.ancashire
Or call the Mental Health Helpline on South Cumbria e e LA Haipin o) South Cumbria
0800 915 4640 el O (L N~ el
mm Samasitan on 16123 Besithieta coabiMont-eskSupport R i i




Suicide Prevention
Suicide Prevention Isolation Campaign-1st Phase Results

Social Media Campaign ran: April - June Campaign impressions: 612,941
Campaign reach: 81,968

v Radio Campaign Results:

ADULTS 15+ REACH REACH % IMPACTS ‘

9/ obe

TOTAL CAMPAIGN 230,750 “ 2,712,366 ‘



/. obed

Suicide Prevention
Suicide Prevention Isolation Campaign-1st Phase Results

Healthier .
Lancashire &
mbria

Lancashre Polica @&
X Myl DOET

Fryauhink.a Nond s strugolng, sach me and chece wr
Beve agra daing megnhlnnlpnmm;mm? :
0 parsen Thars ane option; & video cal iepfiona cod

o AN B RS S (s 3l el dFanencs b 1 1
weiond Teslng sty REEMTHETH WnEim 1
00 = W commmn A

Laacashing Police @
JUSE RLT TR ]

il Bk 6 gl b SRR sech ol and aheck
Bow tay're deing. Even though s nof possiils o rmee
n person thers ae sptians; p viden call belephone call
& mvan B mazsags one mase all the dfiarenoo o
zomeone festng slvne, Wian

00F =

Lanczashirs Coeoty Comncll
2evag il ie 13 B

I's #heninHaplthAmpreseaa\¥ock med now mors thes

ove £3 imporian! 1o keep talking o sach oher A good ' E

momeersation mth & fier: can make a oy dfierence

Taka a braak from social madi and giva them a cil

1
Q0 | zarrrrd 3 s

W5 Groetes Proston CCF @
h oA G

Sodsl medls isnl ey gread foc oor mentsl heati -
<an masa U teal isslated, nob gosd anough o0 searad
Uefakis e el 1K Tagular breaks bom Goreling and
=8l & filend fon n real chnsstion Jf S
wSamThaCpoveption

Facebook Partner Posts |3

Blacipocd FC Commmaiy Trusy
& Wy o 1m0 G

Mow b not e tmiz o batfe shings op Talk o yoor
mratas and sliy eosneclod  pou wank b Lalk o
seisiong cal Senatilins 116 123

FEEAThEC araSatRn CEUCLFaneTin et
Lanashie ped Seuth Cuabda

0.

Wayrn Coamcil
vy TR ]
Plowy iz nod e dims bo bokie dhings op - lss eap 1aking
Healttver Lencashie and Zauth Cumbna buse pul 1
tegether 8 sl of meal heakh e sounces fonanyona vibe
Tl They QI NERS BUpEaR. TakE o ook at
hiips v Amaihisrdse oo cfienfabiealin Sopport

- [ T

oy Umbrureiy Hospicais of Moocambs Say NiSS Foendasion
= Tl &
Wk T 1%

KOl 0 Tod andois of Deuniraimod ol B memend
Tikb & bk Trom aocisl mede ind call ssor e on ' E
family A goed conesmadon cen meke » ki difemencs

%

#EtariThelonvensmian
ﬂ_'l 1 dime

Wishonesiny Hospitale of Masdeanbe Bay NHS Fosnaston
T ot &

iy o 110
Sorial medis znl awvays greal or our merral hestth - R
can maks ux fest icalaod, not good enowgh or camd
Make pure you ke regubar bredics Fore seooling aed
il & frind fon @ real comermalin
L]

O 11 imes

u _ Easl larcashra Hospitals HHS Trust @
= 0 lgr 100G

a5 ol B s 1 bttt things wp. Talk o yow
maleq and slay conmactn il F ou e fasing hospins
shavel iz ol fQiSa=aritems 715 171
EmiTheComrorsation WSacoePrevertion

O s

Eh Emst Larcoshien Hospitals KRS Trust @

SRR <]

Sncial medn 't obvoye et o ourmental heats - 1
san ke os feel Bonled met geod oanugh or s
ake sure you ok ieguler breass from 2osliing and
call a filend bor o 1ed comer=ation

L=l wngation

o

g Burniey Togeihey

TR

i can feed ioagh o (he memend.... nowhens lo go. meking|

sure e lods ane doing the sxhool work, womed aboul

work. §o mmch o ek sboul. If powr singgieg hees +3
plenty of people 1o s 00 and gel help. Onr fisends

Healthier Lancashise 2nd Souly Cumbra. .. S22 moes

Qg

= Smilk Ldsland Distret Crancd
Bl Y T

Lty Epep Tallang s (ke mesrags b anpons vl
weomies from Heathiss Lanc ashie and Souh Cuarons

Healthier Lanceshire asd South Cumbriz's post

fturvam iy 1 D't sctle ¢ 037 = 2ad 5 Frerdd mned ) e




g/ obed

Suicide Prevention
Mental Health Support Sheet

® All local and national MH and Risk factor support in one
place

® Available digitally and as a downloadable 3 page PDF

Healthier
Lancas
South C

Healthier
Lancashire &
South Cumbria

Mental health support
resources in Lancashire

and South Cumbria

Here Is a list of mental health support resources avallable across Lancashire
and South Cumbria. To find out more, follow the links below or make a call.

Dial 999 if you have seriously harmed yourself

Desalthyy 20,
chikdren-and- cple/ wirus

0 Onknesetel matecss,

‘Avallable: 24 hours a day. daily.

An bigwhitewall com

B HETE WAL for over 16s. Malnnln.z«lmnda‘m day.
Safe and anonymous online  kooth com

kemth  counseling and supportfor  Avaiable: weekdays 12pm-10pm:
young people. weekends 6-10pm.

m A safe place for anyone samantans.og 116123
struggling to cope. Avaliable: 24 hours a day. daily.
Worlang 1o prevent male calmzone net
suicide. Support for men 0800 58 58 58
struggling o In crisis. Avallable: Spm-12am, daily.

papyrus-uk org 0800 068 41 41
Text: 07786 200697
Avallable: weekdays 10am-10pm;

2-10pm; bank hol: 2-5pm.

" Healthier g m‘;:,"’_ m‘::‘:w[m M$“
Covers full L&SC ICS "I Loncashire & Er e
" Helpful in supporting Community Hubs VCFS and the wider [ e =8 S5 | SRlms™ s
community in general S B e e
o = Avaiobie: Ocknsooly |
®  Hardcopies distributed to all GP surgeries, Community Hubs |mesx e &mﬁﬁ l“}m:m‘

children's mental health.

and Pharmacies

sasy Alistening ear for par Advice on how to look after your
¢ ‘;"-’-"ﬂ Questions and guidan mental health during Coronavirus.

mentaihealth.org uk/coronavirus

complex family issuet —-
75@ Resources to equip young people 1o
s look after their mental wellibeing.

cwmt org uk

® GSh dviaF book dl ey e e e
ared via Facebook and Instagram B e ncm | ) oy oo Ecasancssagigmaicom
Joolued or ah childline Private and confidential service where
Support for children a iiatal children can talk about anything. Ehadime. gk
s m:::;?:a m Assagu _dmw DAl uppact richmendfeliowship org.uk

@rm Heidping people who suffer from panic

attacks, and other anxiety disorders.  Available: weekdays 3-6pm

nopanic.org uk 0330 606 1174

support 10 ¢

(1] Barnandis 9 Cumbnia e
Young peopie ving somes Avuabu.maysm-!:pln. ]

How to suggest additional content

This document is reviewed on a regular basis. Emad of mental heaith
nuppaﬂwmnumr-ams«mcmnwmeuscmmm For the
latest update, visit haalthierisc ¢ 1

Last reviewed: 4 May 2020




6. obed

Suicide Prevention
Samaritans Bedside Telephone Support

Worked with 4 Acute Trusts, National Samaritans & Hospedia

7/ Hospital sites

Speed-dial (*888) or Touch screen direct

Scrolling banner on Hospedia TV’s

Co-branded Samaritans leaflets and cards for staff to provide

Calls free to end user and Trust

It provides;

Nursing staff with options to support peoples mental health needs.

An option for patients who may need support, unrelated to their hospital stay.
Support for those currently having no hospital visits due to Covid-19.
Support for nursing staff that may also need to access the service.

Talk it
through




08 abed

Suicide Bereavement Support
AMPARO Suicide Liaison Service

¥ Roll out of Suicide Bereavement Service across the whole of the
ICS

" Partnership approach for referrals into the service including:
— Police colleagues

— Coroners
— Funeral Directors

® Enables anyone who has been affected by suicide to access
support within 72 hours of death

AMPARO
support following suicide
Lancashire

) 0330 088 9255

% o

Find out more about Amparo and o

Listening Ear’s other counselling

and therapy services by visiting ' @AMPARO_LEM
www.listening-ear.co.uk

Supported by
Healthier
Lancashire &

> South Cumbria a\, LISTENING EAR

Healthier
3 %gs&ﬂégggn% Suspected Suicide? WHAT support can | provide?

WEBSITE: anyone affected by a suspected
suicide can be directed to our local website
directory. Local and national bereavement
support is broken down by area.

HELP IS AT HAND: a resource that can be
carried with you at all times and given to
those affected by a suspected suicide -
including people who find the deceased.

AMPARQO is a support service for those AMPARO
bereaved by a (suspected) suicide which is Bapport folowing suicide
available for anyone affected, across the listening-ear co uk/amparo/
whole of Lancashire. e

TIME: provide those bereaved or affected by suicide with time to take in
the support available. They may not want to look at it or read it while
you are there, but please leave it with them.

- > | I




Lg abed

Suicide Prevention Training
Lancashire MIND training contract

" Delivering free Suicide Prevention and Self Harm intervention training across the
ICS, to any stakeholders including front line staff and local residents. A menu of
training has been provided over the last 18 months including ASIST, Mental Health
First Aid,

® 67 suicide prevention training programmes and 20 self-harm intervention training
programmes were delivered to over 3000 stakeholders.

® During COVID 19 we have provided online Suicide Prevention First Aid Lite training
to various stakeholders including Police, NWAS, Coast Guards and frontline staff
supporting the Community Hubs.



28 abed

Suicide Prevention Training

Lancashire MIND training contract- Liverpool John Moores
University evaluation results

This chart shows the po sitive Figure 4: Su't:l:itfle prevention trainee attitudes, confidence, knowledge and clinical skills, pre
. . and post training

statistically relevant changes
that have been evaluated from 35.00 - i
delegates in their attitudes, o 29.62
confidence, knowledge pre and ARk
post Suicide Prevention training. 25.00 - —

~ 2000 -

i
A copy of the full evaluation of = 15.00
the training can be found here: — .86 e
https://www.ljmu.ac.uk/research/ce
ntres-and-institutes/public-health- 5.00 A 222 2.87
institute/phi-reports 000

Pre training Fost training

Attitudles s Confidence =e=Enowledge —sss=linical skill



£g abed

Orange Button Community Scheme

Orange button

Suicide Prevention Orange Button Scheme e W
Orange Button — What it is

What is your role?

= To be approochabis and not run from the

o com provds
Ser wort afs basoncs.

® A Community Scheme that ensures people who have been trained in ;E-—- p e
prevention/awareness, can be identified. ARG

oursel well and be seif aware
et ercugh tow e ths taday? Hyouts.
anse R

etng
or othars in donger (999 or crists team ”

® Orange Button holders;- — e
- Encourage tomeecns to mata a safely pian. —

aantsfy o safe parson or sec profassional halp.
Keep your signpas ting knowiadge up-to-date  Smisr

— Are Happy to say/hear the word suicide
— Can support people with signposting
— Can listen without judgement

= A mantol heolth referral sorvics (contact GP o
safrefod.

R mamber the siim from your troining

® Used as a very early intervention scheme to support people in
community with signposting and information. i

" Helps to reduce the stigma of talking about suicide and

No tick boxes should be left unchecked

support. ot

Do | have ume?

nubofhopa co u
al - N
Am | emotionally availoble? b
Do | know my boundaries? 5
‘ or taxt HELLD to (850 022 846 ’

Hao=ny young minas
haokhyy oungmindstsc co uk
Papyrus

papynss womg

Mustin Youtn Hopang
myn g



g abed

= __:::}‘-.: —

Suicide Prevention Orange Button Scheme

Orange B.utton \

" |inked to quality assured, half day+ Suicide Prevention e O
training (ASIST, SFA, SFALite, SafeTalk and MHFA 2 day Adult - Diltion
provided by our partners. *

Ly S¢

heme
Oronge Button Commund Ly Schame

Orange button
holder

® An Orange Button pin badge, window sticker and support

‘@ - Lancashire &

card, are provided to those that complete the training. S

® The badge is removable and not mandatory, as is the window
sticker. It is an identifier that the wearer has received suicide

Welcome to the Orange Button Community Scheme.

prevention training and can provide signposting to support. N\ g

We launch on 10 September 2020 — World Suicide : v
SP(I;\;el'lat;on‘rDaa\.rﬁ::: u"u]ill bi:.promming the scheme through ‘ |
" The button has already been sent to over 300 people that have e '
been trained and requested a button in the first week! We have EanceBatonCrmants o be v ‘
trained over 2500 people so we expect the number to grow. Croous s o oemitie a1 W W o s

ensure you are aware of what is and isn't expected Orange button
when wearing your Orange Button.

. . . hold
" Evaluations will be completed on a 3 monthly basis. o Q
Thank you F aur M




Gg abed

Suicide Prevention Community Feedback Sessions

You Said, We did-

We carried out 5 feedback sessions

to local communities across Lancs
and SC ICS around the whole
Suicide Prevention programme and
provided with opportunities for
people to become involved in the
different workstreams

Some of the feedback from the
sessions has been captured from
delegates that attended.

Didn't realise
there was so
much info and
support that our
organisation can
referto

Local Workshop on the patch -
localised to this area. Lots of info+
opportunitiesto get involved. Lots

going on - thank you!

Really great sessions-lots of
information in an informal setting.
Great info. Feeling Inspired

Shared Information such as helpis
at hand booklet; zero suicide
alliance training; didn't know

figures were so high; Hub of hope

(very useful for my service) Thank

you

Genuine evidence of engaging with
communities + people with lived
experience- inspiring + generates
hope of more joined approaches



9g abed

COVID19 pandemic response

COVID19 has raised concern regarding mental health and risk of suicide across our
region.

Working together LCC and ICS colleagues have responded by:
« A COVID19 specific Suicide Prevention Logic Model as below (slide 49)

« Weekly Real Time Surveillance reports monitoring numbers, trends and looking
for clusters and contagion for suicide and drug related deaths

» Targeting communications and campaign materials into local communities
« Launch of the Orange Button scheme

* Regular suicide prevention meetings across the system.



/8 9bed

Suicide Prevention COVID 19 Response Logic Model

A COVID
specific suicide
prevention plan
has been
developed
aligning to the
overarching SP
Logic Model to
ensure that
during the
pandemic our
stakeholders
are

PR AF]

Lancashire and South Cumbriz ICS
Covid-1% Response Suicide Prevention Logic Model

Long Term

Vision Lancashire and Sowth Cumbria residents are
emotionally resilient and have positive mental haalth

Cutcomes

OO e, oo

T = = =

k &*

Intermediate

Intermediate
CQutcomes Outcome 1
A =trong integrated
Suicide Freverntion
1 Bctan Plan hat is
awned by all key
slakeholders
Short Term
Outcomes

Intermediate Outcome
2

Eliminaiion of suikides e ins
patient-and comneon By nseEndal
FezaBn care sotiings and
Criminal Juslos sasngs
Including Prison and Folon
Cussody

Intermediate
Dutcome 3
Clear paihway of oare for
O¥P and Adubis who Seil
Ham that mests MICE
guidance

Intermediate
Cutcome 4
Effective support to
those who are
affectad’bereaved by
suicide

Intermediate
Outcome 3
T prrory e Bretier
infarmsasan and suppat 10
shaas affecied By swcids
and 1ha=e at ek of suicide

Intermediate

Owutcome B
Improved use of
svidence, data
3nd inteliigence

LEADER SHIP {(}0s 4-6]

G108 8T ODubtsommes 1

B eiftoed e Suicide Prowand on
Oversight Bosed that continues o
el

18 8T Cubtcome 2

Al Cells aro provided with reqalar
updaiad informalicn on RTE dala and
EBF & ponsdered

FREVENTION (105 1-8)

10 BT Oubsoms 3

Eoiation and Aniaky Sockal media
campaign and Support o ndon
maaiaral rofled cof aoross W05,
Earpeding feose al highest risk of
L e

=18 3T Cutoomes 4

Communtiss amd Serdon providers
@ moee s Kdked 1o danfly indisiduals
o rish of sulcide and FessonO

oo ropTisialy

19 BT Oubsome &

Thir nuedia deivers sensive

anp roseeohezs bo S0 obde and Sulcidad
[=2 b e g

INTERVENTION {i0s 1-3}

18 3T Qutsome 8

Frewvarnting amnd respondng oo seif- hanm
during and posi CH19

18 3hort Tarm Cufoome 7

AFT sErvioes hase spaoifis pod haady
ennEdded drom 2407 MH Crsks line
T-18 8hort Tarma Cufoome 2

High risk groups are effactivaly
suprwried and s s meied mised ithnaugh
efipctve projocoks and saleguarding
practioes

18 BRort Tarm Cufsome §

24T Tunclinning

Crisis MH talephmne line (ol age )

C18 @kort Tarm Crutpoms 18
Sbaniliss and bolsior

commeinity nesnial healih

services for @du s and-akder

duls

18 BT Dubeomes 11

Diual lagnosks pathways, ensunng
cans mests NICE guidance (NGEB| ane
S, inpdenss nled cerd adapbed

POSTVENTION (I0s 183 )

C18 ST Qutcome 12

All those bereswved by suicide
will be offersed timely and
appropriste information and
offered support by an
appropriste bereavemsent
senvices within 72 hours

C13 Short Term Cutcome 13
All identified suicide clusters
hawe 3 community response
plan and schools have = post
suicide intervention protocol n
placs

INTELLMGENCE {10 1& 6]
18 8F ODubsomis 14

To asfabiish a refreshed erd Updated
i ealacton and awaiuabion
sysam o ook progress. ends and
risks durmng COWID 15

18 8T Dubsome 15

fugree an RTS suicide Aodil lemplabe
e schemda e

18 8T Oubtooms 18

To have an RTE Budness

T i Cdprial % 0 anable
high lzvel imelgence products o be
prodisced far key sla kehokder
crgansalions and approoriate
sysiem inaddrs

1B 8T Quboome 17

D onennnt of an ATE Panid
Goyuermanca Group 1o dentify and
respond by emangneg EFMORD inends
risk IDootons, clusier. condagion and
COVID refabod deaths by e
eslabdsnmant of a secaly repoding
SHEMET |0 P MiSE keaming and
share good oraclios




Any questions:

chris.lee@lancashire.gov.uk
paul.hopley@nhs.net

a0
Q

Q
()
o
oo

Lancasbhire

County ‘6;:.9‘3! -

www.lancashire.gov.uk Council ‘\"'...‘;“:)
AT




Agenda ltem 6

Health Scrutiny Committee
Meeting to be held on Tuesday, 3 November 2020

Electoral Division affected:
(All Divisions);

Report of the Health Scrutiny Steering Group

Contact for further information:
Gary Halsall, Tel: 01772 536989, Senior Democratic Services Officer (Overview and
Scrutiny), gary.halsall@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

Overview of matters presented and considered by the Health Scrutiny Steering
Group at its meeting held on 14 October 2020.

Recommendation

The Health Scrutiny Committee is asked to receive the report of its Steering Group.

Background and Advice

The Steering Group is made up of the Chair and Deputy Chair of the Health Scrutiny
Committee plus two additional members, one each nominated by the Conservative
and Labour Groups.

The main purpose of the Steering Group is to manage the workload of the
Committee more effectively in the light of increasing number of changes to health
services which are considered to be substantial. The main functions of the Steering
Group are listed below:

1. To act as a preparatory body on behalf of the Committee to develop the following
aspects in relation to planned topics/reviews scheduled on the Committee's work
plan:

o Reasons/focus, objectives and outcomes for scrutiny review;

o Develop key lines of enquiry;

o Request evidence, data and/or information for the report to the Committee;
o Determine who to invite to the Committee;

2. To act as the first point of contact between Scrutiny and the Health Service
Trusts and Clinical Commissioning Groups;

3. To liaise, on behalf of the Committee, with Health Service Trusts and Clinical
Commissioning Groups;

Lancasg.i‘[e
Soundy g@g

Page 89



4. To make proposals to the Committee on whether they consider NHS service
changes to be ‘substantial’ thereby instigating further consultation with scrutiny;

5. To act as mediator when agreement cannot be reached on NHS service changes
by the Committee. The conclusions of any disagreements including referral to
Secretary of State will rest with the Committee;

6. To invite any local Councillor(s) whose ward(s) as well as any County
Councillor(s) whose division(s) are/will be affected to sit on the Group for the
duration of the topic to be considered;

7. To develop and maintain its own work programme for the Committee to consider
and allocate topics accordingly.

It is important to note that the Steering Group is not a formal decision making body
and that it will report its activities and any aspect of its work to the Committee for
consideration and agreement.

e Meeting held on 14 October 2020
Update on the Our Health Our Care programme

Jason Pawluk and Kelly Bishop provided an update on the Our Health Our Care
programme and the plans to partially restore services at Chorley and South Ribble
Hospital's Emergency Department to the group.

It was reported that the programme team was awaiting stage 2 clearance from NHS
England/Improvement (North West) and that a formal meeting would take place on 5
November to discuss the pre-consultation business case. It was anticipated that
arising from that meeting a decision would be made as to whether support would be
given to the Clinical Commissioning Groups to develop the statutory public
consultation. Notification of the decision was likely to be received by the end of
November. Members were informed that the final step to approve commencing a
statutory public consultation rested with the Joint Committee of Clinical
Commissioning Groups (CCGs) for the Our Health Our Care programme.

The group was informed that the programme team had advanced plans for public
consultation ready and that advice had been sought from the Consultation Institute in
developing those plans.

On the recent government policy announcement relating to new hospital funding as
part of the Health Infrastructure Plan phase 2 (HIP2) and how this would affect the
Our Health Our Care programme going forward, it was explained that the earliest
possible delivery date for a new hospital would be around 2028. It was the view of
the programme that it was not going to be possible to leave services as they are now
for another eight years, but to continue to look at what improvements could be made
now for the people of central Lancashire. It was highlighted that the new hospital
build could not form a part of the options for statutory public consultation on the Our
Health Our Care programme.

Page 90



It was highlighted that NHS England/Improvement (North West) had stated that no
consultation would take place whilst the Emergency Department at Chorley and
South Ribble Hospital remained closed.

In response to questions the following information was clarified:

e The forthcoming partial restoration of the Emergency Department's opening
hours (8-5pm) in November, was considered by NHS England/Improvement
(North West) to be sufficient to allow statutory public consultation to proceed.

e The earliest a public consultation on the Our Health Our Care programme
could start was possibly just before Christmas 2020. The programme team
was mindful that the timeline could overlap with pre-election period in 2021. In
the meantime the Health Scrutiny function would be informed of the outcome
of the formal meeting with NHS England/Improvement (North West) on 5
November.

Review of the Health Scrutiny Committee work programme for 2020/21

The work programme for the Health Scrutiny Committee was presented to the group
for review. It was explained that items on suicide prevention, the 2020/21 adult social
care winter plan and the housing with care and support strategy 2018-2025 had
been scheduled for the next two meetings in November and December. An update
on NHS 111 First and the findings of the Our Health Our Care task group would be
scheduled in the New Year.

Subject to further updates from the Our Health Our Care programme director,
members were informed that a report seeking the formal establishment of a task and
finish group to review the proposals would be submitted to the Internal Scrutiny
Committee when it meets on 13 November 2020.

Enquiries had been made in relation to the request for an update on commissioning
reform across Lancashire. It was reported that whilst this matter was paused due to
the pandemic, work on the reform had only recently been resumed. It was hoped that
an update could be presented to the committee in the New Year. In addition
enquiries in relation to the seed funding allocated to Lancashire Teaching Hospitals
NHS Foundation Trust and the University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay NHS
Foundation Trust to develop their plans for Health Infrastructure Plan phase 2 (2025-
2030)! had begun.

Implications:
This item has the following implications, as indicated:
Risk management

This report has no significant risk implications.

1 https://www.gov.uk/government/news/new-hospital-building-programme-announced

Page 91


https://www.gov.uk/government/news/new-hospital-building-programme-announced

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
List of Background Papers

Paper Date Contact/Tel
None
Reason for inclusion in Part Il:

N/A

Page 92



Agenda ltem 7

Health Scrutiny Committee
Meeting to be held on 3 November 2020

Electoral Division affected:
(All Divisions);

Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2020/21
(Appendix 'A' refers)

Contact for further information:
Gary Halsall, 01772 536989, Senior Democratic Services Officer (Overview and
Scrutiny), gary.halsall@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

This report provides information on the single combined work programme for all of
the Lancashire County Council scrutiny committees. A copy of this work programme
is set out at Appendix A.

The topics included were identified at a work planning workshop for members of the
Internal Scrutiny Committee held on 29 May 2020.

Recommendation
The Health Scrutiny Committee is asked to:

i.  Review and agree the work programme items for the committee (as at
Appendix A).
ii.  Discuss and identify any potential key questions for upcoming items.
iii.  Consider and agree sources of information including key officers/partners to
invite for upcoming items.

Background and Advice

The Covid 19 pandemic has required members and officers to work differently and
the wider context has also meant that priorities have changed or shifted in emphasis.

The work programme for this year has been combined with the other scrutiny
committees given that the primary focus of the scrutiny work programme as a whole
is dedicated to the response to the Covid 19 pandemic.

It is important to note that the work programme needs to be flexible in order to
accommodate any urgent items that may arise. In addition, the work programme will
form a standing item on the committee meeting agenda for regular review and to
ensure it is still fit for purpose.

Lancasg.i‘[e
Soundy gggg

Page 93


mailto:gary.halsall@lancashire.gov.uk

Key discussion areas (questions)

To further enhance the work programme, members are asked to reflect on key
discussion areas or questions they would like to consider for each of the topic areas.
This will ensure that the senior officers have a clear focus in order to provide the
relevant information.

Information sources
In addition to identifying key discussion areas, members are asked to consider
information sources and meeting participation for upcoming scrutiny items. This
could include seeking views from service users through:
e individual scrutiny members having conversations with individuals and groups
in their own local areas,
e use of the rapporteur function,

e compiling a short list of questions for a response by the relevant service,
e or the use of social media.

Further to this, members are asked to consider who they would like to invite to future
meetings to help provide a more holistic picture for scrutiny to understand the
challenges and produce meaningful but achievable recommendations.
Members are asked to:
i.  Review and agree the work programme items for the committee (as at
Appendix A).
ii.  Discuss and identify any potential key questions for upcoming items.
iii.  Consider and agree sources of information including key officers/partners to
invite for upcoming items.
Consultations
NA
Implications:
This item has the following implications, as indicated:
Risk management

This report has no significant risk implications.

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
List of Background Papers

Paper Date Contact/Tel
None

Reason for inclusion in Part Il, if appropriate - NA

Page 94



G6 ebed

Appendix 'A’
Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2020-2021

Education and Children's External Health Internal
Services

June e Update from the ICS on NHS
Cells for Lancashire and
digital and engagement with
local people.

e Temporary changes to clinical
services across the ICS during
the COVID-19 pandemic

July Response to the COVID 19 Strengthening flood risk 1. RIPA annual report
pandemic in Lancashire - management and preparedness 2. The impact of Covid 19 on
perceptions of the experiences county council services
of children and young people, Highways — challenges faced
and headlines from the following pandemic and

= operation of service during the resuming 'normal’ work

S COVID-19 emergency period. programmes

p=

September e Education: e Adult social care — winter Covid 19 — what comes next?

- What powers do we have preparations (Supporting the Including building pan-
as a county council/what social care sector including Lancashire working and
can we do to support domiciliary care workers) Democratic involvement in
schools and parents. e NHS 111 First resilience forums and
- Position update on the maintaining democratic
wider reopening of schools leadership during a crisis

e Schools Causing Concern
Task Group report —
response to
recommendations

e SEND Ofsted inspection
report

o Review of work programme



96 abed

Appendix ‘A’

November Education — digital poverty and Suicide prevention in Speeding Traffic and the lack

lesson learned. Lancashire of enforcement
Digital aspirational views — e LCC Adult Social Care Winter
turning challenge into Plan

opportunity.

Early Years sector —impact on e Strengthening flood risk Covid 19 - Further update

private providers supporting management and following the update provided
vulnerable children and preparedness — update on at the September 2020
families (including update on implementing meeting

the EY Strategy and School recommendations.

Improvement Model) Canal & Rivers Trust (tbc)



Appendix ‘A’

A e e
March **Eamily Safeguarding Model — Youth Employment and
update on implementation of Skills — impact on youth as one

model in Oct/Nov 2020 of the hardest hit groups
during the pandemic

(consideration to be given to
which scrutiny committee will
be most relevant to consider
this topic)

Other Topics




Page 98



	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting Held on 15 September 2020
	4 LCC Adult Social Care Winter Plan
	LCC Adult Social Care Winter Plan 2020-21

	5 Update on suicide prevention in Lancashire and South Cumbria
	Appendix 1 Update on suicide prevention in Lancashire and South Cumbria

	6 Report of the Health Scrutiny Committee Steering Group
	7 Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2020/21
	Overview and Scrutiny WP 2020


